2

t/“ Bracknell
Forest

Council
NOTICE OF MEETING

Governance & Audit Committee
Tuesday 22 March 2011, 7.30 pm
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, Bracknell

To: The Governance & Audit Committee

Councillor Ward (Chairman), Councillor Thompson (Vice-Chairman), Councillors Beadsley,
Blatchford, Edger, Leake, McCracken, Mrs McCracken and Mr G S Anderson

cc: Substitute Members of the Committee

Councillors Mrs Ballin, Mrs Beadsley, Birch, Harrison, Mrs Hayes, Mrs Shillcock and Worrall

ALISON SANDERS
Director of Corporate Services

EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS

If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.
Follow the green signs.

Use the stairs not the lifts.

Do not re-enter the building until told to do so.

A OWON -

If you require further information, please contact: Emma Silverton
Telephone: 01344 352281

Email: emma.silverton@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

Published: 14 March 2011



Governance & Audit Committee

Tuesday 22 March 2011, 7.30 pm

Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House,
Bracknell

AGENDA

1.  Apologies for Absence

To receive apologies for absence and to note the attendance of any
substitute members.

2. Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, and the
nature of that interest, in respect of any matter to be considered at this
meeting.

3. Minutes - 25 January 2011

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meetings of the
Committee held on 25 January 2011.

4.  Urgent Items of Business

Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent.

5. External Audit Matters

To receive the Bracknell Forest Council Audit Plan 2010/11, the Annual
Audit Fee 2011/12 Letter and the Audit Commission publication ‘A New
Approach to Value for Money Audit’ which will be presented by Phil
Sharman, District Auditor.

6. Certification of Claims and Returns Annual Report: Housing
Benefit and Council Tax Subsidy and Housing Benefit Internal
Audit Report 2010/11

To receive a report which provides the Committee with a commentary
on the findings of the 2009/10 Audit of the Housing and Council Tax
Benefit Subsidy. In addition the report appraises members of the
second internal audit report of the Housing and Council tax benefit
system.

7.  Internal Audit Plan 2011-12

To receive a report which sets out the underlying principles applied in
the Internal Audit planning process and which seeks the Committee’s
approval of the Internal Audit Plan for 2011/12.

Page No

45 - 94

95-124



10.

11.

Town Centre Land Disposals

To consider a report which proposes an amendment to the Constitution

to permit the Bracknell Town Centre Regeneration Committee to
approve the disposal of land required in connection with the re-
development of Bracknell Town Centre.

Amendments to the Council's Constitution

To receive a report which seeks approval of amendments to the
Council’'s Constitution which are proposed as a result of the recent
introduction of the Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008
and the requirements of the Council to become the primary authority
under the act.

Anti-Money Laundering

To receive a report which seeks approval of the Councils Anti Money
Laundering Policy and to agree steps to implement the policy.

Accounting Policies

To receive a report which seeks approval of the Councils Accounting
Policies which have been revised due to significant changes to the
based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The
revised Accounting Policies will be applied to the production of the
Statement of Accounts 2010/11.

125 -126

127 - 130

131-136

137 - 158



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

‘2

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE /| Bracknell
25 JANUARY 2011 — " Forest
7.30 -9.02 PM i

Council
Present:

Councillors Ward (Chairman), Thompson (Vice-Chairman), Blatchford, Edger, Leake,
McCracken and Mrs McCracken

Independent Members:
Gordon Anderson

Also Present:
Councillor Worrall

Apologies for absence were received from:
Councillor Beadsley

24. Declarations of Interest

Councillor Thompson declared a personal interest in item 6, Internal Audit 6 Month
Report as a Governor of Wildmoor Heath Primary School.

25. Minutes - 23 November 2010

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 23 November 2010 be approved
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

26. Annual Audit Letter

The Committee received apologies from Phil Sharman, District Auditor who was
unable to attend the meeting. The Catherine Morganti presented the Audit
Commission’s Annual Audit Letter 2009/10 to the Governance and Audit Committee.
The Annual Audit Letter focused on the Council’s financial statements and
arrangements to achieve value for money in the use of resources.

An unqualified opinion on the Council’'s 2009/10 financial statements had been given
on 28 September 2010. It was noted that whilst improvements had been made in
fixed asset accounting further action was required to address remaining weaknesses
over valuation of assets.

The Audit Commission felt that the Council had made good progress on preparation
for reporting under the International Financial Reporting Standards. The Committee
noted that officers at the Council felt that they had sufficient skills and capacity within
the existing team to meet the additional demands associated with reporting under
IFRS for the first time in 2010/11.

An unqualified opinion on whether the Council was managing and using its money,
time and people to deliver value for money had been given on 28 September 2010
with all the assessment criteria having been adequately met. It was noted that the



27.

Audit Commission had recommended that the Council should consider opportunities
for improvement identified in the use of resources review.

It was reported that a new approach to local value for money work would be
introduced by the Audit Commission in 2010/11. An update on areas of focus for the
Council would be brought to the Committee’s next meeting.

The Committee noted that officers were waiting for the results of the Hutton enquiry
and the results of the triennial actuarial valuation. It was possible that increased
contributions would be required from the Council to ensure the scheme maintained
an appropriate long-run funding level. Although the evaluation was triennial the year
deficit could be spread over a longer period.

The Audit Manager confirmed that the 2009/10 Audit was now complete and thanked
officers for their co-operation throughout the audit process.

RESOLVED that the Annual Audit Letter 2009/10 be noted.

RECOMMENDED to the Corporate Management Team that when service plans for
the coming year were developed regard be paid to the recommendations set out in
the Annual Audit Letter 2009/10.

Internal Audit 6 month report

The Head of Audit & Risk Management presented the Internal Audit report which
provided a summary of Internal Audit activity during the period April to December
2010.

It was reported that 46 audit reports had been issued in draft or finalised since the
Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2010/11 was approved by the Governance and Audit
Committee. Of the reports issued, limited assurance options had been given for 2
audits. The Committee noted that the issues raised in the compliance with new PCI
Data Security Standards audit had now been addressed. The issues raised in the
audit of Wildmoor Health Primary school had been agreed with the Head Teacher,
would be addressed at the next school governors meeting.

The Committee expressed concern that only 27 of 46 client satisfaction
questionnaires had been returned. The issue had been noted by the Committee in
previous years and had not been resolved despite having been raised at both The
Corporate Management Team meeting and Departmental Management Team
meetings. It was noted that the questionnaire formed an important part of monitoring
contractor performance. It was agreed that the issue would be brought to the
attention of the Chief Executive and those who had not returned questionnaires
would be contacted.

Concern was expressed by the Committee about overspend on Reactive Schools
Maintenance in 2009/10. The overspend of £196, 000 was a serious shortcoming in
the management of expenditure. It was reported that the lapse in process had now
been addressed by officers with a number of procedures, including monthly budget
limits and an alternative approach to the previous insurance based Service Level
Agreement, to prevent future occurrences. Reviews would be regularly included in
the Audit Plan.

RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Assurance Report, April — December 2010 be
noted.



28.

29.

30.

31.

Committee Procedure Rules

Ann Moore, Head of Democratic and Registration Services presented the report
which sought the Committee’s approval to a set of Committee Procedure Rules for
recommendation to the Council for Inclusion in the Council’s constitution.

Councillor David Worrall, Chairman of the Planning and Highways Committee had
worked with the Head of Democratic and Registration Services to develop the rules
and reiterated that the Committee Procedure Rules had been written as a stand
alone document to reflect the differences between the way business was conducted
at Council and at committees, and to clarify those rules which were specific to
committees and sub-committees.

The Committee were advised that the rules for sub-committees applied to the
Council’s panels and advisory committees. They did not apply to the Council’s forums
as they were discussion meetings rather than formal committee meetings, however
there was no reason for the Committee Procedure Rules not to be used as a guide.

It was noted that rules for public speaking had not been specified in the Committee
Procedure Rules as different committees had different procedures due to the differing
nature of the business being undertaken.

RECOMMENDED to Council that the Committee Procedure Rules be included in the
Council’s constitution and that any consequential changes to the constitution be
made.

Annual Governance Statement Preparation

The Borough Solicitor advised the Committee that the Council was required to
produce an Annual Governance Statement to review annual governance processes,
and an Action Plan to accompany it.

He wished to invite the Committee to consider nominating one of their group to join
the Annual Governance Working Group as it had been helpful to have Member input
into the process during the previous year’s preparation.

RESOLVED that Councillor Cliff Thompson be appointed to the Annual Governance
Working Group.

Code of Corporate Governance

The Committee received and considered the report which provided details of
proposed amendments to the Council’'s Code of Corporate Governance.

The Committee were advised that the Code had been reviewed at a meeting of the
Officer Governance Working Group. Annexe A to the report showed amendments
proposed by the Working Group.

RESOLVED that the Council’'s Code of Corporate Governance, as show in Annexe A
of the report, be amended.

Treasury Management Report

Calvin Orr, Chief Technical Accountant, presented the Treasury Management Report
for review by the Committee. The report outlined the Council’s prudential indicators
for 2011/12-2013/14 and the expected treasury operations for the period.



32.

The Council was required to have regard to the Prudential Code and to set Prudential
Indicators for the next three years to ensure that the Council’s capital investment
plans were affordable, prudent and sustainable.

It was noted that the summary capital expenditure projections in the report would be
adjusted to reflect the grant settlement from Government. Any unsupported borrowing
would use standard categories of asset life for the calculation of repayment. The
Committee noted that the standard asset life categories were based on professional
recommendations.

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement covered the Council’s debt and
investment procedures, estimates on future debt limits, expected movement in
interest rates, borrowing and investment strategies and treasury performance
indicators.

It was noted that Bracknell Forest Council was debt free and did not expect to borrow
for 2 years, therefore the strategy focused on investment and the risks associated
with this. The strategy set out the maximum investment and length of investment in
accordance with stringent investment criteria.

The Committee received a paper which gave details of a potential change to the
Treasury Management Strategy. It was suggested that part nationalised UK banks
with a minimum short term rating F1, long term rating A and support rating 3 (or
equivalents) were added to the Counterparty Criteria. The addition would allow the
use of Lloyds and RBS up to a maximum period of 1 year who offered higher interest
rates.

The Committee were advised that no investment was without risk however the
stringent criteria used to identify investment opportunities minimised risk.

RESOLVED that the Treasury Management Strategy be amended to include
additional criteria to Counterparty Criteria.

International Financial Reporting Standards
The Borough Treasurer Designate, gave an update on the progress made towards
the implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards.

It was reported that good progress had been made towards implementation in
accordance with the Council’s timetable. It was noted that proposed changes to the
accounting policies would be brought to the next meeting of the Committee.

RESOLVED that the progress made towards the implementation of International
Financial Reporting Standards be noted.

CHAIRMAN



Agenda ltem 5

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
22 MARCH 2010

1.1

1.2

21

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

EXTERNAL AUDIT MATTERS
Borough Treasurer

PURPOSE OF DECISION

The District Auditor has requested that several documents forming part of the
2010/11 and 2011/12 audits be considered by the Committee.

The District Auditor will attend the meeting of the Committee and will present and
answer questions on these documents.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
That the Governance and Audit Committee note the content of the Audit Plan

2010/11, the Annual Audit Fee 2011/12 Letter and the Audit Commission
publication ‘A new approach to value for money audit’.

ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS

Borough Solicitor

Nothing to add to the report

Borough Treasurer

Nothing to add to the report

Equalities Impact Assessment

There are no equalities issues arising from this report.

Strategic Risk Management Issues

The Audit Plan 2010/11 and the Annual Audit Fee Letter 2011/12 take account of the
District Auditor's assessment of the risks facing the Council. Some of these, such as
the economic climate and public spending pressures, are also included in the
Council’s Strategic Risk Register.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Attached to this summary report are three documents that the District Auditor has
requested the Committee consider:

e Audit Plan 2010/11

e Annual Audit Fee 2011/12 Letter



A new approach to value for money audit, published by the Audit

Commission

42 A summary of the audit fees is set out in the following table:

Audit Area 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12
Statutory audit fee £242.100 £256,600 £230,940
IFRS and VFM rebate £0 (£22,200) £0
Cartification of grant £74,000 £74,000 £60,000
Total £316,100 £308,400 £290,940

4.3 The budget for external audit fees is £316,570 for 2010/11 and £298,570 for 2011/12.
The statutory audit fee and the charge for the certification of grant claims and returns

are therefore within budget in both years.

4.4 In addition, the budget also makes provision for charges associated with the National

Fraud Initiative (approximately £2,000) and any additional costs arising from
investigations undertaken by external audit in response to questions asked or

objections made by local electors. Our experience to date is that the cost associated

with questions or objections is minimal and if this trend continues there should be a
small underspend to report on the external audit fees budget in both 2010/11 and

2011/12.

Background Papers

None

Contact for further information

Alan Nash: 01344 352180

Alan.nash@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

Doc. Ref

F:\Governance & Audit Committee\Meeting 22 March 2011\External Audit Matters.doc




Audit plan

Bracknell Forest Council
Audit 2010/11

‘m gcl)'nq%ission




The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog,
driving economy, efficiency and effectiveness in local

public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone.

Our work across local government, health, housing,
community safety and fire and rescue services means
that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for
money for taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by
11,000 local public bodies.

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership
to assess local public services and make practical
recommendations for promoting a better quality of life

for local people.



Contents

INtrodUCHioN ... —————— 2
ResSpOoNSIibIlities ... s e e e 3
Fee for the audit........cceeiiiiiii e 4
Specific actions the Council could take to reduce its audit fees ................... 5
Auditors report on the financial statements............occnorrici i, 6
Y= (=Y =111 R 6
Identifying opinion audit rSKS..........couueiiiiiiii 6
Identification of specific riskS......cc.ccovimirriiiiimiccc s 7
BLICEES3 T g e T34 =1 = 9
TeStiNG Strategy ...ceueeiee e 9
IT RISK @SSESSMENT ...coveiiiiiei e 9
International Standards of AUdItiNg.........ccoooiiiiiiiiii e 10
Value for money conNCIUSION .........ccceueiiiiiiicicirrrc e e 12
Key milestones and deadlines............coooimimiiiiiiicciiinrc e 14
The audit teaM..........eiiee e s 15
Independence and ObjJeCtiVity ..........oouuiiiiiiiii e 15
IMEEEINGS ...t 15
Quality Of SEIVICE ... 16
Planned OUIPULS ... oo 16
Appendix 1 Basis for fee ..ot 17
=100 0] o] (] o 1 17
Appendix 2 Independence and objectivity .......ccccccevimmieiiiiiinisssir 18
Appendix 3 Working together ... 20
AL (] e 1 PSSR 20
SUStAINADIlILY. ... 20
AppeNndiX 4 GIOSSANY .....cccceiiiiiiiircr s s s s s e s em s e s em s s e nm s e e nn e rnnas 21
o)

Audit Commission Audit plan 1



Introduction

This plan sets out the audit work that | propose to
undertake for the audit of financial statements and the
value for money conclusion 2010/11.

1 The plan is based on the Audit Commission’s risk-based approach to
audit planning. It reflects:

m audit work specified by the Audit Commission for 2010/11;

m current national risks relevant to your local circumstances; and

m your local risks.

2 The audit planning process for 2010/11, including the risk assessment
will continue as the year progresses and | will keep the information and fees
in this plan under review and update it as necessary.

10

Audit Commission Audit plan



Responsibilities

The Audit Commission’s Statement of Responsibilities
of Auditors and of Audited Bodies sets out the
respective responsibilities of the auditor and the
audited body. The Audit Commission has issued a
copy of the Statement to every audited body.

3 The Statement summarises where the different responsibilities of
auditors and of the audited body begin and end and | undertake my audit
work to meet these responsibilities.

4 | comply with the statutory requirements governing our audit work, in
particular:

m the Audit Commission Act 1998; and

m the Code of Audit Practice.

5 Should you wish to discuss any element of your responsibilities please
let me know.

11

Audit Commission Audit plan



Fee for the audit

The fee for the audit is £256,600, as indicated in my
letter of 9 March 2010.

6 The Audit Commission scale fee for a unitary council with equivalent
gross spend to Bracknell Forest Council is £229,220. The fee proposed for
2010/11 is 12 per cent above the scale fee, due substantially to the
implementation of the new revenues and benefits system, and is within the
normal level of variation specified by the Commission.

7 Please note that the audit fee above is quoted on a gross basis and
does not include the rebates detailed below which will be processed as
separate adjustments by the Commission. After taking account of rebates
which total £22,200 the net fee payable for 2010/11 is £234,400. This
compares to an audit fee of £242,100 for 2009/10.

8 The published fee scale for 2010/11 included a 6 per cent increase to
cover the costs of additional audit work arising from the introduction of
International Reporting Standards. In July 2009, in recognition of the
financial pressures that public bodies were facing in the current economic
climate, the Commission confirmed that it would subsidise the 'one-off'
element of the cost of transition to International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) for local authorities and police and fire and rescue
authorities from 2010/11. You therefore received a 6 per cent rebate from
the Audit Commission in May 2010, amounting to £14,177.

9 The Commission wrote to all audited bodies, on 9 August 2010, about
its proposed new arrangements for local value for money audit work. The
impact of this change for 2010/11 has now been considered as part of the
December 2010 consultation on its work programme and fee scales for
2011/12. In addition to the IFRS rebate above the Commission has decided
to rebate a further 3.5 per cent of fees in 2010/11, amounting to £8,023,
reflecting the change in the auditors approach to VFM.

10 Changes in International Auditing Standards (ISAs) will increase the
audit procedures | need to carry out. In line with the Audit Commission's fee
proposals for 2010/11, and subject to the planning assumptions below, | will
absorb the cost of these additional requirements within the quoted fee.

12

Audit Commission Audit plan



11 In setting the fee, | have assumed that:

m the level of risk in relation to the financial statements audit is consistent
with that for 2009/10;

m good quality working papers will be supplied to support the restatement
of 2009/010 balances to comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS);

m good quality, accurate working papers are available at the start of the
financial statements audit; and

m your internal audit team undertakes appropriate work on all material
systems and this is available for our review by March 2011

12 Where these assumptions are not met, | will be required to undertake
additional work which is likely to result in an increased audit fee. Where this
is the case, | will discuss this first with the Borough Treasurer and | will
issue supplements to the plan to record any revisions to my assessment of
risks and the impact on the fee.

13 Further information on the basis for the fee is set out in Appendix 1.

Specific actions the Council could take to reduce its
audit fees

14 The Audit Commission requires its auditors to let audited bodies know
what they can do to reduce audit fees. In setting the fee for 2010/11 | have
made provision for audit work associated with the implementation of your
new revenues and benefits system and first time reporting under IFRS.
Ensuring effective introduction of these changes will enable fees to be
reduced in 2011/12.

15 | will continue to work with your staff to identify any actions that could be
taken to reduce fees and/ or limit the requirement for additional fees.

13

Audit Commission Audit plan



Auditors report on the financial statements

I will carry out the audit of the financial statements in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices
Board (APB).

16 | am required to issue an audit report giving my opinion on whether the
accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as
at 31 March 2011.

Materiality

17 | will apply the concept of materiality in both planning and performing
the audit, in evaluating the effect of any identified misstatements, and in
forming my opinion.

Identifying opinion audit risks

18 As part of my audit risk identification process, | need to fully understand

the Council to identify any risk of material misstatement (whether due to

fraud or error) in the financial statements. | do this by:

m identifying the business risks facing the Council, including assessing
your own risk management arrangements;

m considering your financial performance;

m assessing internal control - including reviewing the overall control
environment, the IT control environment and Internal Audit; and

m assessing the risk of material misstatement arising from the activities
and controls within your information systems.

14

Audit Commission Audit plan



|[dentification of specific risks

| have considered the additional risks that are

appropriate to the current opinion audit and have set

these out below together with my proposed audit

response.

Table 1:
Specific opinion risks identified

Specific risks

Transition to IFRS

The re-statement of the 2009/10
accounts and the preparation of
2010/11 accounts in accordance
with IFRS is a significant project for
the Council.

You have made good progress in
relation to IFRS implementation by
drawing up accounting policies and
producing restated accounts. You
have a plan in place to ensure that
you will produce IFRS compliant
accounts by the statutory deadline
of 30 June.

Audit response

| will continue to consider the arrangements in place to
manage the transition process and continue to monitor
progress.

My team has already carried out early testing on the restated
opening balances in the financial statements. | have reviewed
the skeleton financial statements and have made an early
assessment of compliance with the presentation and
disclosure requirements set out in CIPFA's Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.

| will provide you with feedback which can be used to inform
the closedown process.

My team and | will continue to liaise with officers and, without
compromising my independence, provide an early audit view
on any complex accounting areas such as service,
concessions, leases and property, plant and equipment.

Valuation of fixed assets

In my 2009/10 Annual Governance
Report | recommended that

the Council needs to ensure that
values for assets properly reflect
the physical size,

condition, usage and estimated life.

| will review your progress in developing your arrangements
for asset valuations in 2010/11. In particular | will assess
whether the proposed approach properly reflects the changes
introduced under IFRS and if year end certification
arrangements will adequately support the entries in the
financial statements.

15

Audit Commission Audit plan



IFRS introduces changes in the | will review the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
accounting treatment and valuation  your valuer.

of assets. These factors increase Using information provided by an independent valuer

the risk of error and misstatement  employed by the Audit Commission's Audit Practice | will
appearing in the financial consider the reasonableness of asset values included in the
statements. financial statements.

New financial system

The Council has replaced its

revenue and benefits system. This
has impacted on three significant m robust conversion controls to ensure all data has been

financial systems — Housing completely and accurately transferred to the new system.

| will review whether the Council has established:

Benefit, Council Tax and NDR. m appropriate and effective application system controls for
data processing on the new system

| will seek to place reliance on Internal Audit to complement
my controls assessment.

16

Audit Commission Audit plan 8




Testing strategy

On the basis of risks identified above | will produce a
testing strategy which will consist of testing key
controls and substantive tests of transaction streams
and material account balances at year end. My testing
strategy will have regard to the requirements of the
new clarified International Standards of Auditing (ISAs)
effective for the first time in 2010/11.

Testing strategy

19 | can carry out the testing both before and after the draft financial
statements have been produced (pre- and post-statement testing).

20 Wherever possible, | will complete some substantive testing earlier in
the year before the financial statements are available for audit. | have
identified the following areas where substantive testing could be carried out
early.

Review of accounting policies.

Review of accounting estimates.

Review of disclosure and presentation.

Bank reconciliation.

Valuation and existence of fixed assets.

Feeder system reconciliations.

Where | identify other possible early testing, | will discuss it with officers.

21 Wherever possible, | will seek to rely on the work of your Internal Audit
team to help meet my responsibilities. For 2010/11, | expect to be able to
use the results of Internal Audit's testing of key financial systems as
previously agreed.

IT Risk assessment

22 This year | will update my risk assessment of IT arrangements using a
revised methodology developed by the Audit Commission's Audit Practice.
My review will cover your corporate IT systems and where material to the
financial statements any office based systems developed by users.

17

Audit Commission Audit plan



23 The assessment will cover:

m entry level controls within Agresso;

m access security controls;

m data centre and network controls;

m program change controls, new systems acquisition and development;
and

m end user computing.

International Standards of Auditing

24 The new clarified framework will apply to my audit of your 2010/11
financial statements. Because of these new standards, you can expect to
see changes in how my audit team delivers your audit, and in the
information they request from you.

25 In summary the main changes you will see relate to:
m journals;

m related party transactions;

m accounting estimates; and

m reporting deficiencies in internal control.

Journals

26 ISA (UK&l) 330 (The Auditor's Response to Assessed Risks) requires
me to review all material year-end adjustment journals. Depending on the
compatibility of your general ledger software | can do this by using
interrogation tools such as CAATs (computer-aided audit techniques). My
team will agree a suitable approach to this work with you prior to the
financial statements audit.

Related Party Transactions

27 ISA (UK&I) 550 (Related Parties) requires me to review your
procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an
understanding of your controls to identify such transactions. | will also
review minutes and correspondence for evidence of related party
transactions and carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction
disclosures you make in the financial statements are complete and
accurate.

18
Audit Commission Audit plan 10




Accounting Estimates

28 ISA (UK&I) 540 (Auditing Accounting Estimates, Including Fair Value
Accounting Estimates, and Related Disclosures) requires me to look at your
accounting estimates in detail. As part of my audit | will request a list of
these from you. | will need to know in particular:

m the process you use to make your accounting estimates;

m the controls you use to identify them;

m  whether you use an expert to assist you in making the accounting
estimates;

m  Wwhether any alternative estimates have been discussed and why they
have been rejected;

m  how you assess the degree of estimation uncertainty (this is the level of
uncertainty arising because the estimate cannot be precise or exact);
and

m the prior year's accounting estimates outcomes, and whether there has
been a change in the method of calculation for the current year.

Deficiencies in internal control

29 |ISA (UK&l) 265 (Communicating Deficiencies in Internal Control to
Those Charged with Governance and Management) is a new standard.

30 If | identify a deficiency in any of your internal controls during the audit, |
will undertake further audit testing to decide whether it is significant. If |
decide this is the case, | will report it in writing to the Governance and Audit
Committee, as those charged with governance.

19

Audit Commission Audit plan

11



Value for money conclusion

| am required to give a statutory VFM conclusion on the
Council's arrangements to secure economy, efficiency
and effectiveness.

31 In accordance with the Code of Audit Practice | have to be satisfied that
you have established proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency
and effectiveness. The Audit Commission have specified two criteria which
will provide the focus for my VFM conclusion:

m securing financial resilience — focusing on whether the Council is
managing its financial risks to secure a stable financial position for the
foreseeable future; and

m challenging how the Council secures economy, efficiency and
effectiveness — focusing on whether the Council is prioritising its
resources within tighter budgets and improving productivity and
efficiency.

32 My initial planning identified some potentially significant risks which |
considered might impact upon my value for money conclusion and | set
these out in my letter of the 12 March 2010. | have revisited these risks in
the light of the above new focus for the VFM conclusion and have refreshed
my assessment of the key challenges facing the Council.

33 | have planned my work so as to consider the arrangements you have
put in place to mitigate the risks | have identified. The risks and audit
response are set out in Table 2.

Table 2: Specific risks
Specific VFM conclusion risks identified

Specific risks Audit response

Medium term financial planning

The economic climate and the public As part of my assessment of the arrangements for
spending pressures are having a significant  securing financial resilience. | will consider your
effect on all councils. Ensuring sound medium term financial plans and how you plan to
underlying financial health will be a difficult ~ address the specific risks you face.

challenge in the present economic climate. | wjl| continue to review the Council’s approach to

closing its long term budget gap during medium
term financial planning in the light of funding
restrictions.

20
Audit Commission Audit plan 12




Securing improvements in your use of

resources

The council has previously established

sound arrangements for the achievement of

value for money in the use of resources. In
addition you have identified areas where
you seek to make further improvements

both in response to my previous reports and
your own corporate priorities.

As part of my challenge as to how you are
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness |
will follow-up my previous audit work to establish
what progress you have made in response to
improvement recommendations.

Town centre development

The Council is a strategic partner in the
proposed Town centre redevelopment.

| have made no specific provision for
redevelopment in our plan but should the
development progress significantly | will update
my risk assessment and discuss any fee impact
with the Borough Treasurer.

21

Audit Commission

Audit plan

13



Key milestones and deadlines

The Council is required to prepare the financial
statements by the end of June 2011. | am required to
complete the audit and issue the opinion and value for
money conclusion in September 2011.

34 The key stages in producing and auditing the financial statements are in
Table 3.

35 | will agree with you a schedule of working papers required to support
the entries in the financial statements. The agreed fee is dependent on the
timely receipt of accurate working papers.

36 Every week, during the audit, my audit team will meet with the key
contact and review the status of all queries. | can arrange meetings at a
different frequency depending on the need and the number of issues
arising.

Table 3: Proposed timetable

Walk-through testing of financial systems February - March 2011
Controls and early substantive testing March 2011

Receipt of accounts June 2011

Working papers available to the auditor June 2011

Start of detailed testing 18 July 2011

Review of draft accounts at audit committee 28 June 2011

Progress meetings Formal monthly liaison and

weekly during opinion audit .

Present report to those charged with 29 September 2011

governance at the audit committee

Issue opinion and value for money conclusion 30 September 2011
22

Audit Commission Audit plan 14



The audit team

Table 4 shows the key members of the audit team for
the 2010/11 audit

Table 4: Audit team

m Contact details Responsibilities

Phil Sharman p-sharman@audit- Responsible for the overall delivery

District commission.gov.uk  of the audit including the quality of

Auditor 0844 798 5839 outputs, signing the opinion and
conclusion, and liaison with the
Chief Executive.

Catherine c-morganti@audit- Manages and coordinates the
Morganti commission.gov.uk different elements of the audit work.
Audit 0844 798 4667 Key point of contact for the Borough
Manager Treasurer

Independence and objectivity

37 | am not aware of any relationships that may affect the independence
and objectivity of the District Auditor which | am required by auditing and
ethical standards to communicate to you. The Audit Manager for the
engagement is a friend of a Director of a company who has overseen the
implementation of a financial system at the Council. Safeguards have
therefore been put in place to ensure that the review of this system is
performed by other members of my team.

38 | comply with the ethical standards issued by the APB and with the
Commission’s requirements in respect of independence and objectivity as
summarised in Appendix 2.

Meetings

39 The audit team will ensure we have knowledge of your issues to inform
our risk-based audit through regular liaison with key officers. Our proposals
are set out in Appendix 3.

23

Audit Commission Audit plan

15



Quality of service

40 | aim to provide you with a fully satisfactory audit service. If, however,
you are unable to deal with any difficulty through me and my team please
contact Chris Westwood, Director of Professional Practice, Audit Practice,
Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ
(c-westwood@audit-commission.gov.uk) who will look into any complaint
promptly and to do what he can to resolve the position.

41 If you are still not satisfied you may of course take up the matter with
the Audit Commission’s Complaints Investigation Officer (The Audit
Commission, Westward House, Lime Kiln Close, Stoke Gifford, Bristol
BS34 8SR).

Planned outputs

42 My team will discuss and agree reports with the appropriate officers
before issuing them to the Governance and Audit Committee.

Table 5: Planned outputs

Planned output Indicative date

Annual Governance Report September 2011
Auditor’s report giving an opinion on the September 2011
financial statements and VFM conclusion
Annual Audit Letter November 2011
Phil Sharman
District Auditor
March 2011
24

Audit Commission Audit plan

16



Appendix 1 Basis for fee

The Audit Commission's Audit Practice is committed to targeting its work
where it will have the greatest effect, based upon assessments of risk and
performance. This means planning work to address areas of risk relevant to
our audit responsibilities and reflecting this in the audit fees.

The risk assessment process starts with the identification of the significant
financial and operational risks applying to the Council with reference to:

m my cumulative knowledge of the Council;

m planning guidance issued by the Audit Commission;

m the specific results of previous and ongoing audit work;
m interviews with Council officers; and

m liaison with Internal Audit.

Assumptions

43 In setting the fee, | have assumed that:

m the level of risk in relation to the audit of the financial statements is not
significantly different from that identified for 2009/10;

m you will inform us of significant developments impacting on the audit;
Internal Audit meets the appropriate professional standards;

m Internal Audit undertakes appropriate work on all systems that provide
material figures in the financial statements sufficient that we can place
reliance for the purposes of our audit;

m good quality working papers and records will be provided to support the
financial statements by the agreed date;

m requested information will be provided within agreed timescales; and

m prompt responses will be provided to draft reports.

44 Where these assumptions are not met, | will be required to undertake
additional work which is likely to result in an increased audit fee.

25

Audit Commission Audit plan

17



Appendix 2 Independence and objectivity

Auditors appointed by the Audit Commission are required to comply with the
Commission’s Code of Audit Practice and Standing Guidance for Auditors,
which defines the terms of the appointment. When auditing the financial
statements, auditors are also required to comply with auditing standards
and ethical standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board (APB).

The main requirements of the Code of Audit Practice, Standing Guidance
for Auditors and the standards are summarised below.

International Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 260 (Communication of
audit matters with those charged with governance) requires that the
appointed auditor:

m discloses in writing all relationships that may bear on the auditor’s
objectivity and independence, the related safeguards put in place to
protect against these threats and the total amount of fee that the auditor
has charged the client; and

m confirms in writing that the APB’s ethical standards are complied with
and that, in the auditor’s professional judgement, they are independent
and their objectivity is not compromised.

The standard defines ‘those charged with governance’ as ‘those persons
entrusted with the supervision, control and direction of an entity’. In your
case, the appropriate addressee of communications from the auditor to

those charged with governance is the Governance and Audit Committee.

The Commission’s Code of Audit Practice has an overriding general
requirement that appointed auditors carry out their work independently and
objectively, and ensure that they do not act in any way that might give rise
to, or could reasonably be perceived to give rise to, a conflict of interest. In
particular, appointed auditors and their staff should avoid entering into any
official, professional or personal relationships which may, or could
reasonably be perceived to, cause them inappropriately or unjustifiably to
limit the scope, extent or rigour of their work or impair the objectivity of their
judgement.

26
Audit Commission Audit plan 18




The Standing Guidance for Auditors includes a number of specific rules.

The key rules relevant to this audit appointment are as follows.

m  Appointed auditors should not perform additional work for an audited
body (ie work over and above the minimum required to meet their
statutory responsibilities) if it would compromise their independence or
might give rise to a reasonable perception that their independence
could be compromised. Where the audited body invites the auditor to
carry out risk-based work in a particular area that cannot otherwise be
justified as necessary to support the auditor’s opinion and conclusions,
it should be clearly differentiated within the Audit and Inspection Plan as
being ‘additional work’ and charged for separately from the normal audit
fee.

m Auditors should not accept engagements that involve commenting on
the performance of other auditors appointed by the Commission on
Commission work without first consulting the Commission.

m The District Auditor responsible for the audit should, in all but the most
exceptional circumstances, be changed at least once every seven
years, with additional safeguards in the last two years.

m The District Auditor and senior members of the audit team are
prevented from taking part in political activity on behalf of a political
party, or special interest group, whose activities relate directly to the
functions of local government or NHS bodies in general, or to a
particular local government or NHS body.

The District Auditor and members of the audit team must abide by the
Commission’s policy on gifts, hospitality and entertainment.

27

Audit Commission Audit plan



Appendix 3 Working together

Meetings

The audit team will ensure we have knowledge of your issues to inform our
risk-based audit through regular liaison with key officers.

My proposal for the meetings is as follows.

Table 6: Proposed meetings with officers

Council Audit Timing Purpose
officers Commission staff
Chief District Auditor Quarterly General update
Executive (DA) and Audit
Manager (AM)
Borough DA as appropriate ~ Bi-monthly General update plus:
Treasurer AM and Team m March - Audit Plan
Leader (TL) m June - accounts progress
m September - Annual Governance
Report
m November - Annual Audit Letter
Finance Key AM as appropriate Monthly Update on audit issues
statement
Governance DA and AM, with As determined by Formal reporting of:
and Audit TL as appropriate ~ the Committee = Audit Plan
Committee

m Annual Governance Report
m Annual Audit Letter
|

Other issues as appropriate

Sustainability

The Audit Commission is committed to promoting sustainability in our
working practices and | will actively consider opportunities to reduce our
impact on the environment. This will include:
m reducing paper flow by encouraging you to submit documentation and
working papers electronically;
m use of video and telephone conferencing for meetings as appropriate;

and

m reducing travel.

28

Audit Commission

Audit plan

20



Appendix 4 Glossary

Annual audit letter

Report issued by the auditor to an audited body that summarises the audit
work carried out in the period, auditors’ opinions or conclusions (where
appropriate) and significant issues arising from auditors’ work.

Audit of the accounts

The audit of the accounts of an audited body comprises all work carried out
by auditors in accordance with the Code to meet their statutory
responsibilities under the Audit Commission Act 1998.

Audited body

A body to which the Audit Commission is responsible for appointing the
external auditor, comprising both the members of the body and its
management (the senior officers of the body). Those charged with
governance are the members of the audited body. (See also ‘Members’ and
‘Those charged with governance’.)

Auditing Practices Board (APB)

The body responsible in the UK for issuing auditing standards, ethical
standards and other guidance to auditors. Its objectives are to establish high
standards of auditing that meet the developing needs of users of financial
information and to ensure public confidence in the auditing process.
Auditing standards

Pronouncements of the APB, which contain basic principles and essential
procedures with which auditors are required to comply, except where
otherwise stated in the auditing standard concerned.

Auditor(s)

Auditors appointed by the Audit Commission.

Code (the)
The Code of Audit Practice.

Commission (the)

The Audit Commission for Local Authorities and the National Health Service
in England.

29
Audit Commission Audit plan 21




Directors

Members of the board who are collectively and individually responsible for
the overall direction and control of the audited body. In NHS bodies there is
a unitary board, consisting of executive members and part-time non-
executive members, chaired by a non-executive member. The chief
executive is responsible to the board for the day-to-day management of the
organisation but, as accountable officer, is also responsible to the
Department of Health for the proper stewardship of public money and
assets. (See also ‘Those charged with governance’ and ‘Audited body’).

Ethical Standards

Pronouncements of the APB that contain basic principles that apply to the
conduct of audits and with which auditors are required to comply, except
where otherwise stated in the standard concerned.

Financial statements

The annual statement of accounts or accounting statements that audited
bodies are required to prepare, which summarise the accounts of the
audited body, in accordance with regulations and proper practices in relation
to accounts.

Internal control

The whole system of controls, financial and otherwise, that is established in
order to provide reasonable assurance of effective and efficient operations,
internal financial control and compliance with laws and regulations.

Materiality (and significance)

The APB defines this concept as ‘an expression of the relative significance
or importance of a particular matter in the context of the financial statements
as a whole. A matter is material if its omission would reasonably influence
the decisions of an addressee of the auditor’s report; likewise a
misstatement is material if it would have a similar influence. Materiality may
also be considered in the context of any individual primary statement within
the financial statements or of individual items included in them. Materiality is
not capable of general mathematical definition, as it has both qualitative and
quantitative aspects’.

The term ‘materiality’ applies only in relation to the financial statements.
Auditors appointed by the Commission have responsibilities and duties

under statute, in addition to their responsibility to give an opinion on the
financial statements, which do not necessarily affect their opinion on the
financial statements.

The concept of ‘significance’ applies to these wider responsibilities and
auditors adopt a level of significance that may differ from the materiality
level applied to their audit in relation to the financial statements.
Significance has both qualitative and quantitative aspects.

30

Audit Commission Audit plan

22



Members

The elected, or appointed, members of local government bodies who are
responsible for the overall direction and control of the audited body. (See
also ‘Those charged with governance’ and ‘Audited body’.)

Regularity (of expenditure and income)

Whether, subject to the concept of materiality, the expenditure and income
of the audited body have been applied for the purposes intended by
parliament, and whether they conform with the authorities that govern them.

Remuneration report

Audited bodies are required to produce, and publish with the financial
statements, a remuneration report that discloses the salary and pension
entitlements of senior managers.

Statement on internal control/Annual Governance Statement

Local government bodies are required to publish a statement on internal
control (SIC) with their financial statements (or with their accounting
statements in the case of small bodies). The disclosures in the SIC are
supported and evidenced by the body’s assurance framework. At local
authorities the SIC is known as the Annual Governance Statement and is
prepared in accordance with guidance issued by CIPFA. Police authorities
also produce a SIC in accordance with relevant CIPFA guidance. Local
probation trusts are required to prepare a SIC in accordance with the
requirements specified by HM Treasury in Managing Public Money.

NHS bodies are required to publish a statement on internal control (SIC)
with their financial statements. Specific guidance on the preparation of the
SIC is issued by the Department of Health. The chief executive, as
accountable officer, is required to sign the SIC on behalf of the board. The
disclosures in the SIC are supported and evidenced by the body’s
assurance framework.

Those charged with governance

Those charged with governance are defined in auditing standards as ‘those
persons entrusted with the supervision, control and direction of an entity’.

31
Audit Commission Audit plan 23




In local government bodies, those charged with governance, for the purpose
of complying with auditing standards, are:

for local authorities — the full Council, audit committee (where
established) or any other committee with delegated responsibility for
approval of the financial statements;

for police or fire authorities — the full authority, audit committee (where
established) or other committee with delegated responsibility for
approval of the financial statements;

for local probation boards and trusts — the board or audit committee;
and

for other local government bodies — the full authority or board or
Council, audit committee (where established) or any other committee
with delegated responsibility for approval of the financial statements.

Audit committees are not mandatory for local government bodies, other than
police authorities and local probation trusts. Other bodies are expected to
put in place proper arrangements to allow those charged with governance to
discuss audit matters with both internal and external auditors. Auditors
should satisfy themselves that these matters, and auditors’ reports, are
considered at the level within the audited body that they consider to be most
appropriate.

32

Audit Commission Audit plan

24



If you require a copy of this document in an alternative
format or in a language other than English, please call:
0844 798 7070

© Audit Commission 2011.
Design and production by the Audit Commission Publishing Team.
Image copyright © Audit Commission.

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by
the Audit Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors
and of the audited body. Reports prepared by appointed auditors are
addressed to non-executive directors, members or officers. They are
prepared for the sole use of the audited body. Auditors accept no
responsibility to:

m any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or

m any third party.

‘B ggr%ission

Audit Commission

1st Floor
Millbank Tower
Millbank
London

SW1P 4HQ

Telephone: 0844 798 3131
Fax: 0844 798 2945
Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

33

March 2011



This page is intentionally left blank

34



VA‘ audit.

commission

4 March 2011

Mr Tim Wheadon Direct line 0844 798 5839
Chief Executive

Bracknell Forest Council

Easthampstead House

Town Square

Bracknell

Berkshire RG12 1AQ

Dear Tim

Annual audit fee 2011/12

| am writing to outline the audit work that we propose to undertake for the 2011/12 financial year
at Bracknell Forest Council. The fee reflects the risk-based approach to audit planning set out in
the Code of Audit Practice and work mandated by the Commission for 2011/12. The audit fee
covers the:

e The audit of financial statements
e Value for money conclusion
e Whole of Government accounts.

As | have not yet completed my audit for 2010/11 the audit planning process for 2011/12,
including the risk assessment, will continue as the year progresses.

Audit fee

The Audit Commission proposes to set the scale fee for each audited body for 2011/12, rather
than providing a scale fee with fixed and variable elements. The scale fee reflects a proposed
10% decrease in the total audit fee, as follows:

m no inflationary increase in 2011/12 for audit and inspection scales of fees and the hourly
rates for certifying claims and returns;

m a cut in scale fees of 7% resulting from our new approach to local VFM audit work; and
m a cut in scale fees of 3% reflecting lower continuing audit costs after implementing IFRS.

The scale fee for Bracknell Forest Council is £230,940. The scale fee is based on the planned
2010/11 fee, adjusted for the proposals summarised above. Variations from the scale fee may
be required where my assessments of audit risk and complexity are significantly different from
those identified and reflected in the 2010/11 fee.

Audit Commission, Unit 5 Cowley Business Centre, Horspath Road, Cowley, Oxford, OX4
2RD
T 01865 388950 F 01865 388999 WWW.%usclit-commission.gov.uk



In addition to my statutory external audit | am required to certify claims and returns. My
estimate of the audit and certification fees are summarised below.

Audit area Fee estimate | Fee estimate
2011/12 2010/11

Statutory audit fee £230,940 £256,600

Certification of claims and returns £60,000 £74,000

| will issue a separate audit plan in December 2011. This will detail the risks identified to both
the financial statements audit and the VFM conclusion. The audit plan will set out the audit
procedures | plan to undertake and any changes in fee. If | need to make any significant
amendments to the audit fee, | will first discuss this with the Borough Treasurer. | will then
prepare a report outlining the reasons the fee needs to change for discussion with the
Governance and Audit Committee.

| propose to review your Medium Term Financial Strategy to support the VFM conclusion. | will
issue a detailed project plan before work begins. | will issue several reports over the course of
the audit. | have listed these at Appendix 1.

The fee excludes any assurance or advisory work which you may invite me to perform under the
Commissions advice and assistance powers. Such work is discretionary and therefore | will
negotiate each assignment separately and agree a detailed project specification.

Audit team
Your external audit team must meet high specifications and must:

e understand you, your priorities and provide you with fresh, innovative and useful
support;

e be readily accessible and responsive to your needs, but independent and challenging to
deliver a rigorous audit;

e understand national developments and have a good knowledge of local circumstances;
and

e communicate relevant information to you in a prompt, clear and concise manner.

The key members of the audit team for 2011/12 are:

Name Contact details Responsibilities

Phil Sharman p-sharman@audit- Phil is responsible for the

Engagement Lead commission.gov.uk overall delivery of the audit
0844 798 5839 including the quality of outputs,

liaison with the Chief Executive
and Chair of Governance and
Audit Committee and issuing
the auditor's report.

36



Name

Catherine Morganti
Engagement Manager

Rachel Cobley
Team Leader

Contact details

c-morganti@audit-

commission.gov.uk

0844 798 4667

r-cobley@audit-
commission.gov.uk

0844 798 1793

Responsibilities

Catherine manages and
coordinates the different
elements of the audit work. Key
point of contact for the Borough
Treasurer.

Rachel has experience of
auditing the financial statements
of large local authorities. She
will lead the on-site team in
delivering the audit.

| am committed to providing you with a high-quality service. If you are in any way dissatisfied, or
would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact me. Alternatively you may
wish to contact Chris Westwood, Director of Professional Practice, Audit Practice, Audit
Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ (c-westwood@audit-

commission.gov.uk)

Yours sincerely

Phil Sharman
District Auditor

cc Chris Herbert - Borough Treasurer

cc ClIr Alan Ward - Chair of the Governance and Audit Committee

37



Appendix 1- Planned outputs

We will discuss and agree our reports with officers before issuing them to the Governance
and Audit Committee.

Table 1

Planned output Indicative date
Audit plan December 2011
Annual governance report September 2012

Auditor's report giving the opinion on the = September 2012
financial statements and value for money

conclusion

Final accounts memorandum (to the October 2012
Borough Treasurer)

Annual audit letter November 2012
Annual claims and returns report February 2013

38



A new approach
to value for

money audit

Local government, housing and community safety

December 2010

Contents

Single tier, county and district councils, fire
and rescue authorities and police authorities 2

Other local government bodies 3

Other local government bodies with turnover
above £6.5 million 3

Other local government bodies with turnover
below £6.5 million 3

Summary 4

&‘ ggrﬁ%ission




Single tier, county and district councils, fire and
rescue authorities and police authorities

From 2010/11 auditors of single tier, county and district councils, fire
and rescue authorities and police authorities will give their statutory
value for money (VFM) conclusion based on two criteria specified by

the Commission, as follows:

Specified criteria for the auditor’s VFM conclusion

The organisation has proper
arrangements in place for securing
financial resilience.

What the auditor will consider

The organisation has robust systems
and processes to manage effectively
financial risks and opportunities, and

to secure a stable financial position

that enables it to continue to operate

for the foreseeable future.

The organisation has proper arrangements for
challenging how it secures economy, efficiency
and effectiveness.

The organisation is prioritising its resources
within tighter budgets, for example by achieving
cost reductions and by improving efficiency
and productivity.

The work to support the VFM conclusion

The auditor will undertake risk-based

work focusing on the robustness
of the organisation’s arrangements
relating to financial governance,
strategic financial planning and
financial control. The auditor’s
work may be informed by the
results of previous audit work, the
Commission’s guidance for auditors
and tools such as the VFM profile
tools and the local government
financial ratios tool.

The auditor will undertake risk-based work on the
robustness of the organisation’s arrangements for
prioritising resources and improving productivity
and efficiency. This may be informed by the
results of previous audit work, and the work of
other inspectorates or review agencies. Auditors
may use a range of tools for this work, on a risk
basis, comprising the Commission’s VFM profile
tools, HM Inspector of Constabulary VFM profiles
for police, the local government financial ratios
tool, Commission national studies and follow-up
briefings, and new local savings review tools.

The Commission has developed new local

savings review tools, for use on a risk basis by

auditors, based on three previous studies:

m The Efficiency Challenge (the administration
costs of revenues and benefits);

m  Back to Front (efficiency of back office
functions in local government); and

m Rising to the Challenge (improving fire
service efficiency).

Source: Audit Commission

Audit Commission | A new approach to value for money audﬂ,o < 2

Local government, housing and community safety



Auditors will determine a local programme of VFM audit work based
on their audit risk assessments, informed by these criteria and their
responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice (the Code).

Other local government bodies

For 2010/11, there is no change in approach to auditors’ work to deliver
a VFM conclusion for other local government bodies.

Other local government bodies with turnover
above £6.5 million

For 2011/12, larger national parks authorities, waste disposal
authorities, integrated transport authorities, passenger transport
executives and probation trusts, auditors will apply a light touch
approach which will result in less work than is currently undertaken.
This will involve:

m  reviewing the annual governance statement (AGS) or statement on
internal control (SIC);

m  reviewing the results of the work of other relevant regulatory
bodies or inspectorates, to consider whether there is any impact
on the auditor’s responsibilities at the audited body; and

m  other local risk-based work as appropriate, or any work mandated
by the Commission.

This light touch approach will also apply at joint committees and other
miscellaneous local government bodies.

Other local government bodies with turnover
below £6.5 million

For 2011/12, we are removing the requirement for auditors to

issue a VFM conclusion at audited bodies with annual income or
expenditure below the turnover threshold for small companies audit
exemption (currently £6.5 million). In applying this approach the
Commission and auditors will be relying on paragraph 4 of the Code,
which requires auditors of smaller bodies to apply the Code in so

far as, in their judgement, it is appropriate, taking into account the
nature of the business of the body and any relevant guidance issued
by the Commission.

Audit Commission | A new approach to value for mafef audit
Local government, housing and community safety

3



Summary

The application of the new approach to VFM audit to different types of
audited body is summarised in the Table 1 below.

Table 1: A proportionate approach to the auditor’s VFM work

VFM conclusion
based on

Type of body No requirement VFM work
for VFM work based on

for 2011/12 review of the
AGS/SIC for
2011/12

specified criteria
for 2010/11

Local government bodies

with annual income or v
expenditure below

£6.5million’

Probation trusts v

Other bodies with annual
income or expenditure above v
£6.5 million'

Single-tier, county councils

(including those with fire v
service responsibilities) and

district councils

Fire and rescue authorities v

Police authorities v

Source: Audit Commission

i Includes local councils, internal drainage boards, smaller national parks authorities
and smaller joint committees.

ii Includes integrated transport authorities, passenger transport executives, larger
national parks authorities, larger joint committees, waste disposal authorities and
pensions authorities.

Audit Commission | A new approach to value for money audﬂ,z < 4 »

Local government, housing and community safety



If you require a copy of this document in an alternative format
or in a language other than English, please call: 0844 798 7070

&‘ audit.

commission

Audit Commission

1st Floor

Millbank Tower

Millbank

London

SW1P 4HQ

Telephone: 0844 798 3131

Fax: 0844 798 2945

Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946

www.audit-commission.gov.uk 43 © Audit Commission 2010
10_00256



This page is intentionally left blank

44



Agenda ltem 6

GOVERNANANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
22 MARCH 2011

1.1.

21

2.2

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

CERTIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND RETURNS ANNUAL REPORT:
HOUSING BENEFIT AND COUNCIL TAX SUBSIDY AND HOUSING BENEFIT
INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 2010/11
Director of Environment, Culture and Communities

PURPOSE OF DECISION

The purpose of this report is to provide Committee with a commentary on the findings
of the 2009/10 Audit of the Housing and Council Tax Benefit Subsidy and to re-
assure members of the actions taken and proposed in response of the findings. In
addition the report appraises members of the second internal audit report of the
Housing and Council tax benefit system following the transfer between the Pericles
and Northgate systems, the first part being pre-transfer between the two systems.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the action plan proposed in response to the findings of the certification of
the housing and council tax subsidy claim be noted.

That the proposed actions in response to the internal audit report of the
housing benefit service post implementation of the new Northgate system be
noted.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The certification of the claim for Housing and Council Tax Benefit Audit found a
significant number of errors when testing cases. Governance and Audit Committee
were appraised of this at their September meeting and while the final audit shows an
improved position from what was reported at that time errors still remain. The audit
indicates the potential loss of subsidy of £60,000 against a total subsidy claim of £34
million

Nevertheless, there are issues identified that require a management response. The
findings broadly fall into two categories, criticism of quality of work and shortcomings
in the support of the audit that took place over the summer and early autumn of 2010.

The internal audit report is the second part of the audit following the transfer between
the Pericles and Northgate systems. The report and recommendations may be
utilised in the external audit for 2010/11.

Members will be aware of the Audit Commission inspection of the Benefit Service in

2009/10 which judged the service to be fair with promising prospects for
improvement. The recommendations from the audit will build on that position.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

45



41

5.1

5.2.

5.3.

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

There is no alternative to the proposed actions. If the issues identified are not
addressed there is a risk to the Council that Local Authority error will lead to future
certification of the claim and loss of subsidy. The Council claims over £34 million of
Housing and Council Tax Subsidy and therefore the impact of the loss of subsidy can
be substantial.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Certification Report and Action Plan

The certification report and associated Action Plan are attached as Appendix A to
this report. Appendix B of this report is the proposed action plan in response to those
recommendations. Some of the actions will have been completed by the time
Members receive this report.

From the initial discovery sample the auditors found a majority of claims had errors
and this is significant management concern.

The first area where errors were found was in the setting of parameters in the system
to calculate benefit and thus subsidy. Of particular concern was the fact that an error
in one parameter identified in the 2008/9 audit had not been corrected in time for the
2009/10 audit. The correction was not in the gift of the Council to make and relied
upon the software supplier to perform. Members will be aware that the supplier of the
Pericles system had been purchased by Northgate thus the need for the Council to
seek an alternative system as Pericles was not going to be supported in the future.
Northgate were continually chased to provide the necessary resolution to the
parameter setting from when it was identified. However, there is a concern that this
was not escalated beyond operational level both in the Council and Northgate.

At the time of writing this report the action contained in the action plan
accompanying the audit has been completed in that the parameters have been
checked by the officer leading the year end process then the Benefit Service
Manager and subsequently by the Chief Officer against the relevant circular.
Moreover, it should be noted that the recent housing and council tax benefit audit
(March 2011) at Appendix C undertaken on the transfer of benefit IT systems has
found that when checking the parameters in the new Northgate system they were
found to be correct and no recommendations were made.

The second area where errors were found was in misclassification of expenditure. In
the first case this referred to staff miss-classifying expenditure in terms of assigning
expenditure to the incorrect cell in particular council tax benefit. There was
inconsistency in the assessment officer actions. This should have been picked up by
more rigorous checking and supervision to identify the problem earlier and offer
support and training.

Meetings have taken place with the Benefit Service Management Team and the
whole service to reinforce the importance of accuracy in classifying expenditure. Staff
undertook training on the 3 and 4 March 2011. A new quality checking regime has
been put in place for benefit assessments. Staff have been advised that the failure to
achieve the required level of quality will result in the operation of the Council’s
Capability Procedure.

The audit also found wrong classification of non-Housing revenue account rent
rebate expenditure. The classification has now been checked and a new process is in

46



5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

place between the Housing and Benefit Services to ensure correct classification
takes place in the future. The recent audit (March 2011) of the new system checked
change of circumstances, new applications, backdated awards and found the items
checked to be satisfactory and made no recommendations.

The next area identified was earnings miscalculation and lack of supporting
information. Again this points at quality of work and has been addressed by the
actions mentioned in the previous paragraphs. Staff have already been reminded of
the need to improve the recording of their decisions in the checklist provided when
they assess a claim. Training requirements will be identified via the new supervision
process. Checking of all high value payments and all of the work of new members of
staff is in place. A target is in place to check 10% of all assessment work and quality
targets of 99% for financial error and 98% for procedural error.

It is intended to review the level of management resource devoted to ensuring the
correct level of quality is achieved in the assessment function. The capability of the
management of the Benefit Service will be reviewed in line with the Council’s
Performance Improvement and Capability Procedure. It has been agreed that
random internal audits of benefit assessment will be undertaken in the first quarter of
2011/12. This will compare assessment activity against the checklist as well as
ensuring that expenditure is recorded in the correct cells. All internal reports will be
presented to the Director and Chief Executive until the target level of accuracy has
been achieved.

The next area refers to supporting the work of the audit. The availability of
experienced staff to support the audit in the last financial year was impacted by the
benefit system transfer from Pericles to Northgate.

It is worth noting that in the financial year 2010/11 the Benefit Service was subject to
eight separate internal/ external audits, a full and detailed inspection from the Audit
Commission and the transfer of IT systems. Although agency staff were employed to
back fill during the system transfer process they did not have the same detailed
knowledge of the directly employed staff who were working on the system transfer.
Whilst it is regrettable that the level of support for the audit from experienced staff
was not available at the appropriate time those staff were promoted to work on the IT
system transfer which was seen as priority.

So as to support the 2010/11 audit the relevant managers have received training on
the new Northgate system. The audit for 2010/11 has already begun and a
programme of support for the auditors has been agreed.

Housing Benefit Internal Audit Report

Appendix C contains the internal audit report on the Housing and Council Tax Benefit
system. This is a part 2 audit following on from the previous audit prior to the transfer
from the Pericles to the Northgate system. The audit has provided an overall limited
assurance on controls in place for the Housing and Council Tax Benefits systems.

There are three priority one recommendations which generate the limited assurance

opinion. These refer to data migration, debt collection and general ledger
reconciliation.

Data Migration

47



5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

6.1

6.2

It has not been possible to provide overall assurance that the data migration from
Periciles to Northgate took place in line with controls. It is accepted that the requisite
checking of all transferred data where there was an error in excess of 10 pence on
the claim was checked and corrected. Through testing of individual benefit cases no
discrepancies were found but the auditors were not satisfied that reconciliation had
taken place as demonstrated in the records of checking and amending.

Debt Collection

The debt module on the Northgate system was not operational at the time of the
audit. The delay in implementing the module was due to the need for the supplier to
run a script to correct information from the data transfer and this did not take place
until the 11 February. It was recognised that the existing process for debt recovery
was unchanged. Any debt created in the new system was held in a suspense
account pending the operation of the overpayment module and the issuing of
invoices. However, customers who had received an overpayment had been written to
advising them of this in advance of the issue of the invoices. The overpayments
module went live on the 4 March and in week commencing 7 March invoices were
generated.

General Ledger reconciliation

The audit confirmed that the reconciliation to the general ledger from the Northgate
system had not been completed. Reconciliation should have taken place at the end
of each month and it had not been possible to undertake this activity since October
when the Pericles system was shut down.

Reconciliation requires successful operation of the overpayment module which was
not operational until after 11 February as mentioned previously.. The completion of
the year end process has delayed this action but it is anticipated that the
reconciliation will be completed by the 11 March in the week commencing 21 March.

ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS

Borough Solicitor

Nothing to add to the report.

Borough Treasurer

If the auditor is not satisfied with our responses to her findings this could affect the
subsidy paid to the Council. The Department for Work and Pensions decides
whether to adjust the claim. The 2009/10 accounts showed the subsidy claimed so
we could have to report any change at this stage in the 2010/11 accounts.

Qualification of a claim can also lead to the Department for Work and Pensions
withholding current year (2010/11) subsidy payments. They have not withheld any
2010/11 payments so far. There is one more payment to go. If the Department
withholds payments this affects the Council's cash flow but not our overall financial
position at the year end because they will audit the 2010/11 claim in its own right.

48



Equalities Impact Assessment

6.3 An Equality Screening Form is included at Appendix D.

Strategic Risk Management Issues

6.4 Failure to address the issues contained in the audit may result in the Council losing
subsidy for the benefit payments it makes. This report has commented on the
progress made in implementing the action plan to address those issues.

Background Papers
Certification of claims and returns annual report Bracknell Forest Council Audit 2009/10
Housing and Council tax draft audit report March 2011

Contact for further information

Simon Hendey

Chief Officer: Housing

DD Telephone No. 01355 351879

e-mail: simon-hendey@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

Doc. Ref

49



50



APPEILDIY A,

Bracknell Forest Counci
Audit 2009/10

51



The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog,

driving economy, efficiency and effectiveness in local

public services to deliver better outcomes for Wone.

52



Contents

Appendix 2 Action Pls

Audit Commission Certification of claiiﬁgand returns - annual report 1



Summary

Funding from government grant-paying departments is
an important income stream for the Council. The
Council needs to manage claiming this income
carefully It needs to demonstrate to the audltors W

therefore issued a qualifjgation letter to the grant-paying body. Appendix 1
sets out a full summary.

Significant findings

3 We were able to certify most claims without amendment or qualification;
however we found a significant level of errors while testing cases for the
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Subsidy claim. We mentioned the resuits
of our early testing on this claim in our Annual Governance report to the
Governance and Audit Committee in September 2010. This report now
updates the Governance and Audit Committee on the final results of our
work.

Audit Commission Certification of claims andéturns - annual report



Certification fees

4 We charged a total of £74,0DO for certification work in 2009/10
(compared to a fee of £60,670 for 2008/09). The most significant element
(over 90%) was the fee for the Housing Benefit and Council Tax claim.

/

Actions

5 Appendix 2 summarises my recommendations. The relevant officers of
the Council have already agreed these recommendations.

Audit Commission Certification of cIair\L'_??and returns - annual report



Background

6 The Council claims £120 million for specific activities from grant paying
departments. As this is significant to the Council’s income it is important that
this process is properly managed. In particular this means:

m an adequate control environment over each claim and return; and

m ensuring that the Council can evidence that it has met the conditions
attached to each claim. ﬁ

ya

7 lam requyired by-section 28 of the Audithmmiséion A'ct'199 to.ceNify

rge a fee
amount of

work required to certify each claim or return.

8 The Council is responsible for compiling grant cte
~accordance with the requirements and timescale set b
departments.

9

ibility of expe
m For claims and rettigns\qver £500,000 auditors\as

environment is strong.
m For claims spanning over more than one year, the financial limits above
relate to the amount claimed over the entire life of the claim and testing
is applied accordingly. The approach impacts on the amount of grants
work we carry out, ptacing more emphasis on the high value claims.

Audit Commission Certification of claims and&urns - annual report



Findings

Control environment

10 We have been able to rely on the Council's control environment for most
parts of all claims, except for Housing Benefit and Council Tax subsidy. This
claim falls outside the scope of paragraph 9 because of its size and

eligibility. Results of these tests were satisfactory.
Specific claims - Housing Benefit anc
subsidy

12 We found a high level of errors whe

on the issues arising for e
action plan to addressAheA

13 We certify the clainm\sing
DWP and the it Commissi

Non HRA rent 15 cases 14 errors
rebates
Rent Allowances 20 cases 10 errors

Council Tax Benefit 20 cases 11 errors

Audit Commission Certification of clairﬁZand returns - annual report



15 The discovery sample errors meant we had to carry out more testing to
give the DWP the information it requires to determine if further action is
required. The overall results of both the initial and discovery testing led to
the claim being amended. As a result subsidy payable to the Council
increased by £11,222. However due to the number of errors found we also
issued a qualification letter to the claim setting out our findings for the DWP.
The extrapolated impact of errors set out in our qualification letter could lead
o a potential reduction of subsidy of £60,000. This was based on the results
of further testing. It is less than our estimate of £228,000 reported in our
Annual Governance report in September 2010 which was based on the
results of our initial testing. 0

s

- 16 The key themes from our work causing concern were:

a setting of parameters;

m misclassification of expenditure;

m earnings miscalculation or lack of supporting evidep
overpayment;

m miscellaneous errors;

m interrogation of the Council's Benefit and Revenues
and

ésulting in an

Pericles;

parameters foraorn eht yebates had not been updated and this led to

subsidy being un”r afmed.

19 It is essential the Gbuncil inputs parameters correctly in good time. As
this is the second year of problems with parameters Internal Audit have
agreed to focus some of their testing on parameters in 2010/11.

R1 Parameters -
m Ensure these are entered correctly as soon as possible in the year.

m Ensure that this is independently checked.
m Maintain documentary evidence of this - so that further audit

Audit Commission Certification of claims and&turns - annual report



gueries can be dealt with efficiently and quickly.

Misclassification of expenditure

20 The claim is made up of several entries or "cells" for different types of
benefit granted. Our certification instructions require us to test whether
cases have been correctly coded to the cells within the claim. In many
cases, particularly overpayments of benefit, the classification of expenditute

threshold for that Council. If the upper threshold is exceeded thg
lose all subsidy for these overpayments. '

years' claims. As the number of cases is re
the Benefits team check all cases before w
claim.

e level o s found in classifying
ining and stress the importance of

classification.

Earnings miscalculation or lack of supporting evidence resulting in
overpayment

23 We found a number of errors in how claimants' earnings had been
calculated. This led to overpayment of benefit to claimants. The Council
receives less subsidy for errors it has made.

24 One of the main errors was failing to use the correct number of payslips
to support the entitiement of earnings. In many cases there was no

Audit Commission Certification of claiégand returns - annual report



explanation on file for this. The Benefits-team-have-a checklist which-sets
out how judgements have been reached but we found that it was not used
consistently. There is scope to use this checklist and include details of
judgements such as why particular payslips or a different number of
payslips from the standard guidance are used. This would provide a trail for
staff who assess cases at later dates. It would also help managers both in
their sample check of cases and in assessing training needs. Finally it may
help reduce audit input when certifying the claim.

25 As a result of these errors we had to carry out additional testing (we call
this 40 plus testing) focusing on how earnings had been calculated. We

found:

m Rent allowances - a further 4 cases containing errors. When the )@
of errors for all cases tested was extrapolated there was a pojentiak_ =~
subsidy over claim of £39,769.

m Council Tax Benefit - a further 2 cases found of overpa
benefit. When the value of all overpaid cases tested wa
there was a potential subsidy over claim of £20,5

extrapolated

Underpayment of benefit

26 We found a variety of errors which led fo claimants beipg {nderpaid

earnings also identified three further cases undeypdid due Tovngefrect

calculation of earned inco

R6 Carry out risk as ch cking 6f clalms fd éssess if ‘bé’neﬂt entitlement
has been correctiy galculated.

Interrogation of Pericles Benefits system

27 On finding errors we had to conduct further tests in more depth to
attempt to quantify their impact for the DWP to determine any action. We
found that staff were unable to provide extracts of the Pericles system for an
error we found on capital cases so this was included as unquantified in the
qualification letter. Selecting additional samples around the errors found on
earnings was also time-consuming due to this. There is scope for relevant

Audit Commission Certification of claims ancﬁ@urns - annual report



staff to be trained on the new Northgate system to improve their ability to
interrogate the system effectively. If this is not done the Council will continue
to be at risk of losing subsidy for benefit payments it makes.

R7 Ensure that benefit managers are able to interrogate the Northgate
system adequately for their own management purposes and also to
allow errors found as part of certification testing to be quantified. N\

Achieving the DWP's deadline for certifying the claim

as staff were
5 therefore timed

28 Our work took place at a busy time for the Benefits sg
engaged with the migration from Pericles to Northgate
our work with the aim of completing it for the end o
this.

found, we were required to carry out 40 ¢ sting. focused on
the errors we found, including:
m earnings for Rent allowances and Cou
m Council Tax Benefit overps

ed with the move to the new system and
ere dealt with by agency staff who would not

32 In future years, should 40 plus testing be required, staff of appropriate
skills should be allocated to the work. '

R8 Allocate staff of sufficient skill and experience early in the certification
work to ensure that queries are dealt with adequately and promptly,
and to carry out 40 plus testing to the required standard.

Audit Commission Certification of clair&‘land returns - annual report 9



Looking forward

33 The 2010/11 claim will be made of output from the new Northgate
system. But due to the mid year system change some transactions history
will remain in Pericles. The processing of claims through two systems will
complicate the claim certification during the 2010/11 year. It will be essential
there are clear audit trails making up the entries on the claim and that audit
queries are responded to promptly and appropriately. We will work with the
Benefits team to draw up a timetable with the aim of meeting the
certification deadline. We suggest that this is done as soon as poss%

R9 The Council should establish an action plan with gleartimescales and
responsibilities to:
m address the findings of this report;

m ensure there is a clear audit trail for the entries foxthe2010/11

claim; and

m  ensure there is a timetable to mee W i

Phil Sharman

Audit Commission Certification of claims anggBturns - annual report

10



Appendix 1 Summary of 2009/10 certified
claims

Claims and returns above £500,000

‘Housing and 32,287,215  No Yes ‘ Yef
council tax

benefit N\

Sure Start, 3,024,205 Partial due to N No
Early Years qualification on

and eligibility in ¢ >
Childcare 2008/09. ./

National - 53,509,084 Yes No No
Non

Domestic

Rates '
“Teachers' 6,391,378 < No No
pensions

return ( V>

Disabled 26 l,OO No
facilities

Audit Commission Certification of claim@gnd returns - annual report




64




APPEIOT 1Y

Appendix 2 Action Plan

Parameters

m Ensure these are entered correctly as soon as possible in the year
m Ensure that this is independently checked.

m Maintain documentary evidence of this - so that further audjq n be dealt with efficiently

and quickly. A
Responsibility Benefit Service Manager / / \\
Priority High | / N \>
Date March
Comments | riifgate system will be complete by the

Resp%s{thty \Qt;qeﬁt Mssment Manager

pronty N 1l
Date \\ //Jch 2011

Comments \/ All assessment staff will be advised in writing by end of February of
expenditure classification requirements. Training will take place on the
3/4 March to reinforce requirements. Sample checking of 10%

Assessment Officer work will take place each month and issues identified
fed back via the supervision process so that support and training is
offered where required; at least 5% new claims and 5% Change of
Circumstances.

Review non HRA cases in advance of certification work to ensure they are correctly classified.
Ensure there is evidence on file to support their classification.

Responsibility Control & System Support Officer

Audit Commission Certification of ciairﬁ’ind returns - annual report A 12




66




Priority Medium
Date March 2011

Comments - All existing Non-HRA expenditure has been reviewed and classified in
line with the appropriate code on the Northgate system.

All non-HRA rent rebate expenditure cases will be reviewed on a monthly
basis to ensure correct classification.

Housing Options Service to review notification of temporary
accommodation to Benefit Service in line with subsidy classifications via
a proforma in line with expenditure classification from beginning of March
to ensure consistency of approach. />

Take urgent action to reduce the level of errors found calculatjg
of cases to assess progress made and any further action i |ps\ i

Responsibility Benefit Assessment Manag;r/ / \\
/ AV

Priority High

{
pate NN

Comments Staff have recejved refresher trainiRg in October 2010. Checking of work
undertaken nmssues fed bagk via supervision process.

Ensure there is a clear audit trai the ber\iWssessors have reached

judgements on benefits e )nen\

Responsibility: / ,B/ nefit A} glssment\m \@ger

Priority \ Wigh L\,
\/

Date

Commepts a been advised of need to provide full breakdown on reasons for
b e’r' t votitlement and to ensure this is adequately reflected in
ot booksY Sample checking to be undertaken on earned income benefit
c airns on a monthly basis.

Carry out risk baan of claims to assess if benefit entitlement has been correctly
calculated. :

rhings, Carry out test checking

-——Responsibility————Benefit Assessment-Manager

Priority High

Date

Comments Checking of all benefit assessment will be undertaken for all new
assessment staff for their probation period of six months. All payments of
over £ 1,000 will be checked before payment.

Ensure that benefit managers are able to interrogate the Northgate system adequately for their own

Audit Commission Certification of clairwand returns - annual report 13




management purposes and also to allow errors found as part of certification testing to be quantified.

Responsibility Benefit Service Manager

Priority Medium

Date March 2011

Comments All managers have received training on the new Northgate system to

enable interrogation. Additional support and training will be required for
the Control & System Support Officer when she returns from maternity
leave and this has already been arranged.

Allocate staff of sufficient skill and experience early in the certiﬁcatiyr(\yor/k to ensure that queries

are dealt with adequately and promptly, and to carry out 40 plus #ésfing\o the required standard.
Responsibility Benefit Service Manager /\</ \\

Priority High / / \\

Date / / A\ \B

Comments

it traiNfor\the entNes\for the 2010/11 claim; and
~m ensure there is a fimegtable to mget the certificatign deadline

Responsibility \ \//j\ AV

m ensure there is a clegra

Priority /_\ igh <
Date / / \ \AQril\2€k1\
Commen h respMe to the recommendations is set out above. A plan of support
for the Audit Commission has been agreed to support the audit based on
‘ ejf draft timetable

Audit Commission Certification of claims andg8turns - annual report ' 14



Audit Commission

Certification of claif3ind retu'rns - annual report

15



70



- | | APPEIL DY O

%

A A | V% Bracknell
mg?Magei,;i‘iatianzgtreggfhx ) F @reSt

/ Council

/ .

Internal Audit

Housing &
Council Ta "Beqeﬁis
(Part2)

Report status: Draft

Report date: 3" March 2011

Financial period: 2010/11

Prepared by: Mark Gee, Jill Hills, Auditors (01252 510333)
Reviewed by: Jay Hussain, Audit Partner (01252 510333)

71




SECTION 1: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1. Introduction

This audit forms part of the agreement
between HW Controls & Assurance and

Bracknell Forest Council for the delivery of the

approved audit plan for 2010/11.

2. Audit Scope

The audit work was structured to confirm the
effectiveness of the controls in place over the
Housing & Council Tax Benefits system.

Obijectives

" .
The objectives.of the audit.focused.on.the

3. Summary of Findings

OVERALL AUDIT OPINION

Overall, Internal Audit can give Limited
assurance on the controls in place for the
Housing & Council Tax Benefits.

Detailed findings are set out in Section 2.
Individual audit objectives within the scope of
the review have been assessed as follows:

"No. Of Recs

Individual Audit | Assurance

Objective Areas | | ' Priority.

following areas:

Policies and Procedures;
Reconciliations for data migration;
Data migration between Pericles and
Northgate;

Benefits transactions;

Debt collection;

Amendments to standing system dats;
IT security;

Compliance with GCSx;

General ledger reconciliations; and
Previously identified weaknesses.

Key potential risks
The key potential risks associated with
housing and council tax benefits are:

e Policies and procedures are not in place or
adhered to leading to
inefficient/erroneous/fraudulent activity;

s"are not performed
or reviewed !eadlng 0 irregular or
erroneous payments going undetected.

Policies and
Procedures

Reconciliations
for data migration

Data migration
between Pericles
and Northgate

Benefits Satisfactory | - {1 -
transactions : ‘

Limited -1 -

Significant R R

IT security

Significant | - | - |-

Compliance with | Satisfactory | - | 2 | -

“reconciliations

General Ledger Limited 1) - <

Previously n/a -l
identified
weaknesses

Total 7 3|4 -

Page 2 7fQ2



Assurance
Level

Definition

Significant

There is a sound system of internal
controls to meet the system
objectives and testing performed
indicates that controls are being
consistently applied. -

Satisfactory

There is basically a sound system of
internal controls although there are
some minor weaknesses in controls
and/or there is evidence that the level
of non-compliance may put some
minor systems objectives at risk.

Limited

There are some weaknesses in the
adequacy of the internal control
system which put the systems
objectives at risk and/or the level
of compliance or non-compliance
puts some of the systems
objectives at risk.

No
Assurance

Control is weak leaving the system
open to significant error or abuse
and/or there is significant non-
compliance with basic controls.

PS3 of 22




Internal Audit & Risk Management HW Controls & Assurance LLP

SECTION 2: DETAILED REPORT

Directorate: Environment, Culture and Communities

Key Audit Contacts: Benefit Service Manager

Date of last review and Opinion: 6th December 2010, Satisfactory
Start Date: 25" January 2011

Background

The administration of Benefits was previously processed on the Pericles system which
was replaced with the Northgate system on 2™ November 2010. Part one of the audit
was performed for the period from April 2010 to August 2010 to ensure that the controls
were operating effectively before the transition to the new system. Part two of the audit
has been performed to ensure that the migration of data from Pericles to Northgate has

_ been accurately completed and to ensure that the controls are operating effectively after
the transition to Northgate.

undertaken by the Benefits
of over fifteen officers, reporting to
the Housing Chief Officer.

The administration of Housing & Council Tax Be
Service. The Benefits Service is made up of
the Benefit Service Manager who in turn rep

Detailed Findings

this audit are set out below.
1g the exit meeting to be

Detailed findings relating to areas of risk identified as part
Appropriate actions will be discussed with management ¢
held on 28" February 2011

process of being updated to refl
understand through discussid
comprehensive system
Benefits shared drive.

-observation that Northgate comes with
dures are accessible to users on the

Through discussion it was confirmed work has begun to construct specific procedure
notes for the new system. We tested a sample of 5 procedure notes chosen from the
Benefits shared drive which had been updated since the migration to Northgate.

Two of the procedure-notes-viewed-were-provided-directly from Northgate. -Of the -
remaining three procedures reviewed which had been produced internally, it was noted
that there was no evidence of the last date of review or the preparer/reviewer. A
recommendation has been made to rectify.

Through examination of the procedures for backdates it was observed that the notes do
not address key controls in the review process. Whilst accepted that procedure notes

are a work in progress, a recommendation is raised to address the risk of inefficiency or
inconsistent working practises being adopted.

A recommendation has been raised. (Section 3, recommendation 1)

Page 4/d 22



Internal Audit & Risk Management HW Controls & Assurance LLP

2. Reconciliations for data migration;

We discussed the reconciliation process for ensuring that data was accurately
transferred from Pericles to Northgate. Northgate produced a Dataload report detailing
each of the dataload files, the number of records accepted and the number of errors
recorded and the number per type of error identified. They also made recommendations
for data records that BFC should sample check as part of the reconciliation process to
ensure the accuracy of the go live data.

There was a two week data cleansing period whereby no new data was added to
Northgate and all officers focused on reviewing the reports produced by Northgate and
clearing any discrepancies identified between the two sets of data." *Discrepancies were
exported into a series of spreadsheets which were used to confrol the clearing down and
correction of data discrepancies. SQL reports were run to re the two databases
and any discrepancies were checked through and ame

A number of the discrepancies related to old claims, as on y claims.in:payment at the cut
off date were transferred across to Northgate. Every claim with a difference in the
calculated benefit entittement greater than 10p were reviewed and correCted where
appropriate. We were advised that the majority of the smaller discrepanci s were due to
rounding differences between the two systems. . ’

No processing of new or amended claims data were actioned until all data transfer issues
were resolved.

We have been provided with copies;
officers checking off each discrepan
reports relate to the errors reported in*
cannot say with any certainty that all e fled'b
between the two systems have been sa’us- ved.”In addition, we have been
provided with a number of spreadsheets pi ced as part of the migration process.

'SQL reports which clearly show evidence of

We reviéW
of the audit.

had been accuratelyﬁ a completely migrated from Pericles to Northgate. Samples of 20
(except where noted) were tested as follows:

o Declaration of interests recorded on system; (5);
Change of Circumstances;

New applications;

Backdated awards;

Overpayments;

Write offs (not applicable); and

Debt Collection

@ 6 0 o 6 o

No issues were identified as a result of our testing.

#Re 5 of 22




Internal Audit & Risk Management HW Controls & Assurance LLP

4. Benefits transactions

Key benefits transactions include change of circumstances, new applications, backdated
awards and payments.

Random samples of 20 transactions' for the categories below were tested:

Change of Circumstances;

New applications;

Backdated awards; and

Payments (5 payments runs each for both cheques and BACS).

Our testing identified 3 out of 5 instances where manual amendments were made to
BACS payments prior to the actual payments being made. These manual amendments
were noted to all be reductions in the overall total of the BAC’s payment. Discussion with

officers confirmed that these were due to the need fo stop payments being made fo ..

claimants whereby a last minute change of circumstances would have lead to them being -
overpaid if the BAC’s payment was processed. Officers confirmed that the BAC’s would
only ever be reduced by such amendments and nevéer'as a way of increasing or adding a
payment to the BAC'’s run. Officers stated that ason for the need to be able to-
amend the BAC's payment at this stage was ise the process to generate the BAC's
takes place overnight, otherwise the system not be ayvailable for users if it was run

5. Debt collectio

All overpayments are rev
There have been no fundai
introduction of Northgate.

ed by the Recom,efﬁ} Officer and the Recovery Assistant.
tal changes to the process for debt recovery since the

We noted at the audit planning stage that the debtors module for Northgate had yet to go
live. Currently, any new debts requiring an invoice are held in a suspense account
pending the running of overpayments. Consequentially invoices are not raised and sent

to recipients of overpayments. Discussions with the Benefits-Service Manager confirmed

that in these circumstances claimants have been written to advising them of the
overpayment, although a formal invoice will not be raised until the debtors module goes
live.

In addition, the Benefits Service Manager confirmed that where an existing debt on
transfer to Northgate was being recovered by the agreed reduction in benefit payable,
these arrangements were continuing.

A sample of 20 overpayments was tested and it was noted that in 4 instances an invoice
was required but could not be raised due to the Northgate debtors not being fully
operational. These 4 overpayments are recorded in the suspense account, 4 are due to

" Unless stated otherwise in brackets

Page 6/¢)22



Internal Audit & Risk Management HW Controls & Assurance LLP

be recovered as part of Council tax billing process and the remaining 12 are to be
recovered by adjusting the recipients’ ongoing entitlement.

We understand that although the debtors module is not currently in use, the Benefits
team have still been processing write offs on the system. In addition, there are debts that
have been showing on Agresso from before Pericles e.g. 1999, which have only recently
been approved for write off. We understand from officers that debts raised on Pericles
have not been transferred to Northgate as this would feed through to the subsidy
calculations making it inaccurate as these Pericles debts have already been claimed.

One recommendations have been raised. (Section 3, recommendation 4).

6. Amendments to standing system data

In order to verify that the parameters used by the Northgate software to calculate housing
and council tax benefit entitiement are accurate we ormed a 100% check of
parameters to the Up Rating Checklist for 2010/11 provided by the Audit Commission.
We initially obtain a parameter report from N gate and endeavoured to match this to
the Up Rating Checklist. This enabled us toverify the accuracy of 46 of the parameters
(bearing in mind that one parameter may appear ore th nce in the checklist). The
remainder were not possible to match as the descn pti as per the report from
Northgate did not sufficiently match the descrlptton o} . checklist to enable us to
categorically match the two. For the remainder, we obt ied screen prints directly from
the Northgate software, confirming the rate each paramet r had been set at. Subject to
confirmation that the two rates listed below are not preset, all arameters on the Uprating
checklist have been verifi  Northgate as correct. v

Carer's Allowance:

Carer's Allowan

We have not therefore made a recommendation

7. IT security

IT security controls will be reviewed as part of the Norfhgate Revenues and Benefits —
Post implementation 2010/11 audit.

Pdge 7 of 22



Internal Audit & Risk Management HW Controls & Assurance LLP

8. Compliance with GCSx

We obtained from the Council’s IT service a list of staff working within the Housing
Benefit and Council Tax section with access to GCSx. This was checked to the manual
files maintained in the Housing Benefit/Council Tax Benefit section.

Of the 18 officers on the IT list who matched the HB/CT file we noted that the GCSx form
has a section for HR to sign off to confirm that they have seen certain documents to
confirm |dent|ty These boxes were not completed for any of the 18 officers. Discussion
with the Benefits Service Manager, confirmed that this is a template form provided by the
DWP and has not been tailored to the procedures in operation at BFC. It is the Benefits
Service Manager that checks identity, not HR and therefore these boxes are not
applicable. We have therefore suggested that the template is a iended to remove these
boxes.

Furthermore, all 18 members of staff had mobile devices for and Memorandum
Of Understanding (MOU) appendix B forms which were SIQned and ated. In respect of
the MOU appendix A, whilst these were on file for all 18, one form ‘undated and

another had not been signed or dated

Every time a member of staff accesses the DWP database an NHB5 form is ‘completed.

A copy of the information requested is then printed and scanned on file before both
documents are coded NHB5 on ICLipse. We tested a random sample of 20 NHB5
documents coded NHBS5 on ICLipsé und that on each occasion a NHB5 form had
been produced. In one instance t 7 _‘:v'\ias dated March 2010 whereas the enquiry
was in November 2010. Discussion With t ef'ts Service Manager identified that if
for some reason the enquiry is no long time the NHBS is raised, but
subsequently the same Benefits Officer the > same claimants details, they
will do so based on the original NHB5. Howeve g
since the NHB5 had been generated, it wo e preferable for a new form to be
generated.

It was con -med during udit planning stage that the key Benefit reconciliation for

general ledger} &n performed.

The reconciliation
Pericles.

ss was last completed in October 2010 before the closedown on .

A recommendation has been raised. (Section 3, recommendation 7).

10. Previously identified weaknesses

Of the one recommendations raised in the last review which has reached its target date
this recommendation is considerered not applicable.

“The Benefits Section should ensure invoices are sent to claimants in a timely manner.”

Page 8fR22



Internal Audit & Risk Management HW Controls & Assurance LLP

The recommendation concerning debt collection has been superseded by the
recommendation raised in this audit concerning debt collection.

ﬁege 9 of 22




2z 40 01 ebed

1102 1ebeuey
aunp Wyog | edlaleg Jijsuag

.vmﬂ@w |

"J9qUUNU UOISIaA
pue sjep ‘ainjeubis
jo Aem Aq 9oUSpINS

. dMa ey ded
SEe pajuawWnoop aq
pInoys s|o5uoo sy (e
‘sessa00.d @1ebyloN
apnjoul o} pajepdn
ale.sainpaoold usaypn

LDIOM JuB)sISuooul
10 Jusiolauy|

108.1100U} 0} Spes)
Koijod joaulo0u|

salnpaoold

pue saioijod
suonesiuebio

3yl Yim
290UBPIODDE Ul UXE)}
10U 88 Suoioy

‘pajdope
Buiaq sesnoeld Bupjiom jusysisuooul . ;
Jo Aouaoiyaul JO 3sSLI 8y} SSaIPPE 0}

pasiel s UojjepusuLLIooal e ‘ssalboid ;

Ul ylom e ale sajou ainpaoold

| 1ey} peydeooe Js|Iyp sseoold
MBIABI BY} Ul S[0Jju0D A3y ssalppe
10U Op S8J0U 8y} JBY} POAISSJO
sem }I sajepoeq Jo} sainpaooid
8y} Jo uoneujwexa ybnoly

80

‘Jomainal/laredald

BU} pUB M8alA8I JO B1ep
1SE| 8} JO 90UBPIAS OU Sem 318y} Jey}
sajou ainpaooud |eulsiul ajgeoydde
9214} INO 881U} JO} PaJOU SBM }| L

9jep

uoioy

SUoly

ssauyespy | oy

10Bie] | Aujiqisuodsay | juawabeuey pasiby

_Kioyoeyspeg

pepuawwossy

uonesidwipisiy

$9INpadoid pue saldljod ‘|

aouesnssy

VI¥Y JAILOICEO0 LIANY TYNAIAIGNI

NV1d NOILOV :€ NOLLOdS

d717 @aueInssy 9 S|0JjuoD MH

Juswabeue YsIY ® IPNY [eulsiu|




gz io || ebed

‘uonjebyseaul
Joj uopedyLelo

Buiinbas sease

‘palisjsuen
Ajejeinooe usaq sey

BJep s Jey) WIyuod:

0} |9A8] Jojusas e Je
ssaoo.d uojjejjiouooal
BIEp 8Uj} 4O 4O ubis
[[BIBAD U8 q: pinoys
Emce co;_nnm u

,,;ou_tmm: ay} paiuapl

-~ aney Aey) srsym
seale pue Hodal
peojejeq 8jebyloN
oy} Ul payLap] siou

‘sjuswihed Jysusq
Jo Aoeinooe sy}
uo Apoadip joeduw
[JIM SUOISSILLIO

10 siolke Aue ‘swieo
Buiob uo 1o} Jeuaq
JO suolEenNoEeD
alnny jje

JO SISeq 8y} SW.o}

..wm,,__u:wambm__o Aue Apuspi jou pip
vamSQ Seseo Jjausq [enpiapul
- jo Bunse)} ybnoyye sjebyuoN

0y Ajeyeinooe useq sey ssjoliad

WwioJ} ejep Jo|Jajsuedy ||elono ay}
ey} eouelnssel spinoid o} sjge aJe
OM 810J20 UOHBOlIEIO Jayuny 104
wes} sjjeusg 05 0} 3oeq palisjal
usaq aney ym_‘: salenb jo Jsquinu
e _um_..Ecmn_ sjusWINoop 8sau}

10 M8jA8l INo :m>m>>oI ‘sse00.d
uonelbiw sy} u,o ued se paonpoud
s)e8yspealds Jo Jaquinu & Yiim
papinoid cmmn aABY am ‘uonippe
uj "Hodel _omo_mgmo a1ebyuoN sy}

U papodal s10119 8} 0} 8jejal ‘sn o)
papino.d spodal ._Ow ayl %o sajdoo ayy
MOy 130 w>m>>_m J0U SI}l ‘pUNOS SEM
8)eBULION 0} S3[olad WOl palisjsuel)

1102 Jebeuepy ay} jo cz,onv_mm_nm B} oy} e} Jeso seseqejep OM} 8} | EJep JO UONE|IoU0Dal 8U} o) paqLosap
yolep 80IAIRS e apinoid 0] Ipny: E'S| 818y} JBY} 8INSus | Useamiaq paliajsuel se wwmo@a 8y} 1By} pauLIuod
b€ sjeuag jeussu; "paalby 7 plnoys s4eollo Blep 8y} sy sleoiyo ﬁ_\s SUOQISSNOSIP I1S|IYAA Z
ajep uonoy suonoy .
jobie] | Aupgqisuodsey | Juswebeuely paalby ) papuswiiosdy uonesydwipisiy ssauqeopy | oM
pajiuwT , , | "uoljelBiy ejeq 10} SUOHEI|IOUOIY
agueInssy v3yV IAILOIrE0 Liany TVNAIAIGNI

d77 @oueInssy B S|0JJU0D AMH

1

EmEmamqu %SIY B UpNY [Buisiu]

81



22 10 zZ) ebed

‘11§l SI9sn 10} S|qe|lBAE 8 JoU P[noMm
wajsAs ay} asimiaylo ‘ybiuteno
aoe|d saye} s,Qvg 8y} ajelsush

. 0} sseoo.d 8y} esneoaq sem abejs

| esiyy je uswiAed s,0vg oy} puswe

- 0}.9|0/e 89 0} PesU 8y} J0oj Uoseal

o 18y} ley) pejels sieolo Cund
S, o<m ayj o} Juswied e Buippe
Lo.,"@c_mmmbc_ Jo Aem e se Jansu

ue cmEvcmEm yons Aq pasonpai
8q JaAs Ajuo pjnom s,Qvg aul
ey} UmEEcoo sleolO ‘pesseooid
‘ sem Juswied s, Ovg syl

il U_mo_._m>o Buieq wayj 0} pes| eAey
U_so>> saoueSWnoUID Jo abueys
snuIW jse| e Agalaym sjuewielo

0} epew Buiaq syjuswAed dois

0} paau 8y} 0} anp aJam asayj jeul
POWIUOD SISO YYM UOISSNOSIQ

- "juswAhed s,0vg 8y} o [e]o}
__mg«w>o 8y} Ul suononpal aq ||e 0}
pajoU Blam sjusWpUSWE [EnuEBW
mmwr_ 1 -epew Buieq sjuswAied
[enjoe ay} 0} Joud sjuswAed

"$90UBISIUNDIID

8y} jo.uope|souen
ay) snsian weyshs ayy passaooud

82

1102 lebBeuepy 0} sjuslpusue ay} ale sjuswAhed SOVd 0} epew aiam sjuslupusule
yolep 90IAlI8S : $0,Buitin auy 1| yim ajelidosddeul jenuewl aisym sasouejsul
sh€ sjijsuag ‘peviby. Ajiiejo pinoys syjueg pue pasuoyneun G Jo Ino ¢ paynuep! BunselinO | ¢
ajep i uonoy suonoy
jobae] | Apqisuodsay | Juswabeuely pasuby papualLWIodIdy uonesdwipsy ssoueap | oy
@ouumv,m_umm b G PR o e e
; i R : e ” G .. suonoesuel} sjysusg 'y

Va4V JAILO3rg0 11any TvNAIAIGNI

aoueinssy

d71 90uBINSSY B S|0UOD AMH _ - juswsbeuep Ysiy B HPNY [BUISU]




Zz o gl ebed

wmocm“wEJOL_o _NCO;QOOXO

AJaA uj @sn A

JUO S| SjuswpusLLE

ayeuw o) b___o_m 8y} ey} Jeplo
Ul L] Yum sy \c:m_o pjnoys uonoes
sjjeusyg m£ 1By} epew ussq

sey uonepusu|

Wwooel Vv uswAed

s,9v4 8y} _moemo 01 ybnouy pesy

0} ||} Way} Lou, pue spew st unl
uswAed s O<m_ [eul} ey uiod ayy
01 dn wa}sAs 8y} Uo sjusWpUSWIE

8y eyew o)

Hiey lju
‘Janemol Aep

s|qissod aq pjnoys
104} pUElSIapun am
ay} Buunp uns sem

ajep . uonoy Do, o suonoy
1obue] | Aunqisuodsay | jusweabeue|y pasiby Aond PopUBLLLLOIAY uonesdwipsry SSOUBAAN oy
Eouumpm_umw suopnoesuel) sjysusg 'y
aguelinssy vaNY 3AILLD3IrE0 Lianv TvYNAaiAlaNI
d77 @ouBInssy ¥ S|0juU0D AMH swabeuey sy B Hpny [eulsiu|

83



2z o | ebed

‘uonyisod
seo s,[1ounoD
ay) Bupoaye

[ 78U} po1OU SEM Jl PUE pa}sa}
uswiAediano Qg jo sjdwes vy

‘Buinunuoo
sjuswabuelle asay} ‘sjqeled
lauaq Ul uoijonpal paaibe ayy
palanooal buieq sem ajebyHoN
i 0} Jejsuel) uo jqap Bupsixe
19UM Jey} umEEcoo Jsbeuep
83 mtmm sjjeusg ay} ‘uolippe uj

"A| S80B6 8|npow sI0}gap ay} |iun
pasiel 8q JoU [|IM 8910AUI [BULIO}

e yBnoyyje uswAedisro ay} jo
way} BuisiApe 0} UslIM Usaq aAey
SJUBLLIE|O S9OUB]SWNDIID 9S8y}

ul 1ey} pawiiuoo Jabeuepy 8oIneg
syjeuag 8y} Yim suolssnosig

. sjuswAediano jo sjusidioal

0] JUSS pue pasiel Jou aie S8dl0AUl
Ajenusnbesuo) “sjuswdediano
jo Butuuny sy} Buipuad junoooe
asuadsns e Ul pjay ale 9210AUl Ue
mc:_scm: sijgep mau Aue ‘Apuaiing
. *anl| 0B o} 194 pey sjebypoN

1102 Jebeuep 1102 r_o_m_z i Ajesienpe Agalayy
yolep ao1n8S | Aq aAlj 0B 01 sI snpow star Jeuuew Ajpwn e Ul 104 m_snoE siojqep ey} Jey} ebels
W sjyeuag sio)ge( ‘peeiby. 7o eypjeyj aunsug | pejos||09 jou siiged Buiuue|d ypne ayj je pajou spA ¥
ajep uoljoy e s suonoy
196ie] | Aupqisuodsay | jusweabeuely poalby Ruond - popuaWWossy uoneaydwipisiy ssoujeapn | oM
pajlwiT - _ :o:om__oo Smo ‘g
wo:m..:mm< <mm< 3AILO3rgO Liany .~<:o_>_oz_

d77 @2ueInssy B S|0jU0D MH

%mEmmmcmE YSIY % Ipny [Buleiu]

84



gz 40 G| sbed

aAey sjgep sojolad esalj) se
ajeinooeu )i mc_me suope[nojes
Apisgns ay} 0} cmzofuw pas} pjnom
sIy} se Qmm{toz 0} paliajsuel}
~usaq jou m>mc sjolad Uo pasiel
mEm_o ey Emo_to woJ} puelslapun
S\ - HO a1IM Joj panolidde usaq

Ausoal >_co aneY YoIym ‘6661

‘Bre-sejoliad Eo%mn woJy ossalby |

.| uo Bumoys useq eAey ey} sigep
: |- eleasay) eo;_nvm ujp -welshs

8y} uo syo mE\s Buisseooid usaq

[113s- oney Emmu s)jauag 8y} ‘esn
ul Apualing jou si 8|npowl sioqsp
auy} ybnouyye imﬁ puglsiapun s

m pUEIIENMIE

Buiobuo mEm_a_om._ ay} Bunsnlpe
Ag _omhm>oomg 8q o}ele 7|
Buiurews. mr_:vcm ssao0.d Buljjiq
X} louno o Hed se paianooal
aq o1 8np ale p 4 Junoooe asuadsns
a3y} ul vm_u_oomg ale sjuawAediano
4 mwmc.r ‘leuonelado

Ajiny Bureq “oc siojgap a1ebyloN

3y} 0} anp pasiel aq Jou pjnoo ing
palinbal sem a210AUl UB S8ouB)SUl

a)ep uondy

jobue] | Agisuodsay | juswabeueyy paalby

suonoy
pepuaLLWIOdaYy

uoyeayduipisiy

ssauyeap

9y

payw

uoy99109 398a '§

-aoueINSSy

VIEY FALLD3rd0 1ianv TvNalAIaNI

d77 @oueInssy 9 S|oAU0D AMH

JusWabeue ysiy B UpNY [eulalu]

85



Zz 10 9| ebed

‘pawie|o usaq Apealje.

ajep
jebie] | Ayupgisuodsay

uopay

suonoy
popusawwossy

19y

paywI]

juswebeuepy pasiby

uonesndwipisiy

ssouyeap;

U0199]09 3990 °S

aourINsSSY

V3¥V 3ALLO3rG0 Liany TVNAIAIGNI

d77 @dueINSsyY ¢ Sj0uU0D MH

JuswaBeuepy ¥SIY 9 UpNY [eulaiu]

86



Zz 0 /| ebed

"XSD9 Jo Joadsal

ul sapiljiqisuodsal Jiay)
10 Way) puiwal 0}
(110Z fen) sseooud
 |esieldde ay} Jo
1ed se siseq.jenuue
Ue Uo sjuaWnoop

‘ajejal Aoy woy

-0} 18010 3y} Aq pajep
-pue paubis aie swlo}

lle jey} ainsue o}
uaxe} eq pinoys alen

"SIoM)aU Jo8UU0D)
JUBWILIBAOS) 8Y]

‘Peiep

1102 Jabeuepy ayy ubises 0 ‘perep-pue:paufis aq LloJy pejoauuoosip | Jo paubis usaq Jou peYy | pue pajepun
yolep B0IAIRS | PaYSE o] ||IM SI90I0" pinoys-Buipuejsispun ale |1ounon SEM ULIOJ | [4EIS 8| O} pamalAal
b€ sjeuag ‘uopippe u| ‘paaiby: I4 ,..ﬁ,w‘_E:ucm‘_oEmE 1\ 18104 ||ouyoelg | alem Buipueisiapun JO SWNPUBIOWS g
ajep uonoy T | suonoy
10bie] | Apgisuodsay | juswabeur|y pealby - Koy papuawLIossy uonestdwipisiy ssauqespr | oM
Kiojoejsieg XS99 Yim asueljdwo g
aoueinssy VIV JALLDACG0 LIaNV TYNAaiAIaNI

d7] @ouBINSSY § S|0U0D AH

swabeut

2N NS B PNy [eulaju|

87



2z 0 g| ebed

Es,r.EE m:sm_xm_
“ue uo Kjad Jou pinoys

sI80lj0 "epew

JIOM}BU J0BUUOD)
JUBWIUIBA0L) 8U)

: n&mhmcmm
“ Wioj mau e Joj a|qelajeld
~|-eq’pinom }i ‘pejelsusb useq
- Pey-GgHN auj eouls psssed pey
mEcoE ybie ey} usAIb ‘JanemoH
'GEHN [eulbLio ay} uo paseq
0s lop [|im A8y} ‘s|ieldp sjuewelo
alEs 8} $S8008 0} Spasu IO
sjjeuag swes ay} Ajjusnbasgns
Inq ‘pesiel si GGHN Y3 swil 8y}
1e pauinbal sebuoj ou si Alinbus sy}
UOSES. SWOS 10} {i ey} paliuspl
laBeuely 92IAI8S sHjsuag 8y}

YUM UoISsSnosiq “010Z 1equianoN

- ur sem Aiinbus ay} seaiaym

- 0L0T Yolep\ pejep sem wioy

8y} 9ouBjsul SUo U] ‘psonpold
useq pey wioj GGHN B Uoisesdo

ac

1102 " JoBeuepy Sl st Auinbus ue swp WoJ} pejosuUoosIp yoes uo ey} punoy pue esdio|
yolep aoineg | uodal siyy 03 Jo ubis: fisne pejelsush aq ale |iounon | U0 GEHN P8pOod sjuslndop ggHN ,
€ s)eueg yum paaibe aq o1 | m_:.oﬁ_.m‘E_E GEHN uy 188104 |[euMoelg | 02 uﬁ ajdwes wopuel e pa}ss} apA 9
ajep uopoy suonoy
196ie] | Apqisuodsay | juswabeuepy poaiby pepuswiwosay uoneaydwipisry ssaudeapy | 49
Kioyoejspes X099 yym souerdwiog ‘g
wocm._:mm,x %mm< JAILDArdo F_Q:<.._<DD_>_DZ_

d7171 @oueInssy % s|o4uod AMH

Juswabeue|y Ysiy 9 HpNY [eulaiu]

88



2z o 61 sbed

‘sjusLUB)B]S
[BIOUBUY S[IOUN0D m
- 093 ‘souelly U} Ul juswsiessiw ‘sanss| WalsAs
JO pesH . Jsuuew [BHSBN | Buinuguoo o enp pauiopiad usaq jou
1102 pue ssbeuey Ajpwi B Uy pawiopad uodn sey Jabpa| |eiausb 1o} uonel|ioucoal
yalep BOIAIDG e aq p|hoys ssesoid paljal aq jouued ujousg Aay m_f 1ey; abejs bujuueld
€ syyeusg ‘paaiby | L 7 Uopeyoucoel 8y | B)ED [BIOUBUI upne ay} Buunp pauluod Sem ) /
ajep uonoy R TE Ny suoljoy
10buey | Ayjiqisuodsay | juswabeuey pesiby fuond: popuaWiLLoI9y uonesydwipisiy ssauqeapy | oM
-uB_E_._ suoljel|1ouo023y Jabpa |elauss) ‘g
aoueinssy - VIHV JALLOIrE0 LIany TvNAIAIGNI

d71 @oueInssy B s|0u0) MH

JusWwabeue|y YsIy ¥ UpNY [BUISU|

89



22 40 0z ebed

SSOIAIeS UOIBULIC)U|
Blunwiwog

“(0%903) eoveuld jo pesH
BUISNOH :J82150 JBIUD
JoBeuepy 8oIAIag JUSg
'S891N088Y 9 SOUBWLIOLS — JSoIO JaIuD

190130 EmEmmmmm« sjyousg

1900 JUSLISSaSSY

19910 SIUBWISSOSSE w“_u_mgmn Jolues
hmu_tomam;oomm

1eBeuely 9oiAISg Jyeueg

sues)| 1ed

BYZ0l|Bd 9oUIA
HeqJeH slyD
youpusH Ajles
Buleads yeles
UeWwAH weyels
uosuiqoy Jeed
AspusH uowig
weyy zeueuys
uoyeg suep

uonnquysiq Jodey Jeig

yelon aisoy
walke4 unay
OAMUONQ Uoleys
Agdiyt wi

wely zeueys

pamaIAIRIU] J)S

uonnqysig toawm pue malaiau| Jels | Xipuaddy

d77 @aueInssy B S|0JU0D MH EmEmmmcmE YSIY %9 PNy |[eulaiy|

90



ZzZ o Lz ebed

"|013u00 ||eJaA0 BAcIdW] 0} 801301 1S8] PapUBLILLIoDSY €
! :¢ fjuong

MSH 1B $8A108[q0 Swis)sAs Jo JusliaAalyor ay) sind Sj0Jlu0d Yiim
- @oue|dwod u Aous)sisuooul 10 sjoJjuod Jo ubisap sy} Ul ssauNeapA 4
1z fyioud

“)su Je saAnoalqo

SWISSAS JO JusWaABIyOR ay) sind JBy] S|oLu0|ylim aoueljduiod
-UOU JUSISISUOD JO SJoJjuod Jo uBisap a8y Ui Ssauyesm [Rluswepun
1} Kuoud

uoniulaq | Ajuolid

:sBunes AjioLid Jo uoniuyaqg

d71 mocm.:gww{ R S|0JJUOD MH

JusLaBeUBI ST 8 JPNY [BUISIU|

91



2z 40 2z 8bed

co;mEmEm_aE_ 1o} s|qejow|
nmmam aABY BM/| "lO)ipne 8y} YIM Way} Ssnosip 0} b_c:toaa

18 ‘Upny — Jebeueyy 10e1U0D) D4g ‘Buleeds yeleg o} nmEBE

1110102 Z Med Jyouag Xe| [1ouno) pue Buisnoy

e asuodsel cmEmmmcmE e vmn:_oc_ pue suoljepuUaWILLIodal 8U}
e peYy oABY pue Jipne siy} jo wmc__oc_._g 8y} UO pajsliq uaaq aney amy/|

993Ipny }O juswidaiby

[OAARARINS

[laudoeIg

alenbg umo

asnoH peesisduweyises

1004 pIg

‘Uonoas eoueUl4 ‘UpNY [Bulsiy|

:ssalppe Buimojjos ey}

cmE pue sajipny ey Aq paubls pue ino pajulid 89 PINOYS WO} SIU} Yiim Buoje podss yipne ayL

99]ipny o Juswaaiby

d717 eoueINsSsY %9 S[0JU0D MH , JuswiabeuBy YSIY B IPNY [eulsiu]

92



SOOIAISS JJauaq 8y} Jo dn aye) ssasse 0} SISed Jejnbal e U PaIOjIUOW . SISWOISND

uag

¢ sy} oddns 03 aney nok op asuapina Jeyp q "zl

sjuaidioal Jyauaq ||e 0} AiaAlap 8o1A1es aaoidwi pinoys suonoe pasodoid ay |

‘uoseal e oAb asea|d |esnau si joedwl 8y} | ¢Uioq

1o} [enuajod e alay) si 1o 8sianpe 1o aaiysod Joedwi ay) S|
£8q a1y} Aew yoedwi Ayjenba jo pury JeypA

¢yoedw ue asayj s| - Ayjenba yaijeq pue uoibijey e °Z|

SOOIAISS JJauaq 8y} Jo dn aye) ssasse 0} SIsed Jejnbal e U PaIOJIUOW . SISWOISND

uag

¢ sy} oddns 03 aney nok op asuapina Jeypr q “LL

sjuaidioal Jyauaq ||e 0} AlaAljap ad1Ales aAoidwl pjnoys suonoe pasodoid ay] -

‘uoseal e oAb asea|d |esnau si joedwl 8y} | ¢Uioq

1o} [enuajod e alay) Si Jo asianpe 1o aaiysod joedwi ay) S|
£8q a1y} Aew yoedwi Ayijenba jo pury JeypA

¢yoedwi ue a1ay} s| - Ayjenbo aby e 'L}

SOOIAISS JJauaq 8y} Jo dn aye) ssasse 0} SIsed Jejnbal e U PaIOjIUOW . SISWOISND

uag

¢ sy} oddns 03 aney nok op asuapina Jeypa q 0L

syuaidioal Jyauaq |e 0} Alaalap ad1Alas aaoldwil pinoys suonoe pasodold ay |

‘uoseal e anlb asea|d [esinau sijoedwi 8U} §| ¢4Uloq

Joj |enuajod e a1ay} s J0 3sJaApE 10 aalisod Joedw ayy s|
¢,99 a1y} Aew joedwi Ayjenba jo pury Jeypp

Zyoeduwi ue aiayy s - Ayjenba Aigesiq e oL

SO0IAISS JJauaq 8y} o dn aye) ssasse 0} sised Jejnbal e U PaIO}ILUOW BJE SIBWOISND e

ueg

£s1y3 Hoddns 03 aAey noA op 9ouapIAd Jeym q '6

‘syuaidioal Jyauaq |e 0} AJanlsp ao1n8s anoldwi pjnoys suonoe pasodoid ay |

‘uoseal e anib asea|d [esjnau sijoedwi 8yl | ¢yioq

Joj |enuajod e ai1ay} si Jo asianpe Jo aasod joedwi ay} S|
£,8q a18y) Aew 1oedwi Ajjenba jo puiy Jeypa

éyoedw ue asayy sj - A}ijenba sspuan e g

"$80IAISS Jiyouaq 8y} Jo dn axe) ssasse 0} siseq Jejnfal B U0 PaIo}UOL B1e SISWO)SND Jyd

ueg

"0J8 UOIJBWLIOLUI UOIOB)SIES
Jawo)sno ‘s)nsal uoie)nsuod ‘ejep Buopuow Ayjenbs 63
£s1y3 Hoddns 03 aAey noA op @ouapIAd Jeym q '8

sjuaidioal Jyauaq |e o} Aianiap a2iaas anosdwi pinoys suonoe pasodoid sy

A

‘uoseal e anib asea|d |esynau si Joedwi a8y} §| ¢Yyioq

Joj |enuajod e ai1ay} si Jo asianpe Jo aalsod joedwi ay} S|
£,8q a18y) Aew 1oedwi Ajjenba jo puiy Jeypa

éyoedwi ue aiayy s| - Ajjenba jeloey e g

spuaidioal Jausq ||y

¢yebueyyouaq o) paubisap AjAnoe ay) st oym "L

sBuipuy Jipne o} puodsail 0} uejd uoioy

¢ fuanoe ayy jo asodind ayy si jeypp -

yelo) aisoy ‘wele zeu

eus

& Wea) |3 ayj Jo s1aquiaw ay) ale oypn -

wely zeu

eys

Bunsixg x  meN []

¢éMAanoe Bunsixa Jo mau e Y S| -

abueyo |euonesiuebiQ [] 8omes [[] Maney X josloid [] ainpaooidjuonouny [] Abejess/Aoljod []

9
S
Bujuaaios ay} Joj ajqisuodsal 19240 ¥
€
[4

¢Minnoe ayy siyeym -

"Z Wed jyauaq xe} |1ounoo pue Buisnoy Jipne [euajul pue wieo ApISqns Jyauaq Jo UoieoILe)

passasse aq 0} AJIAjoY )

sjiyouag :uo1oss _ 993 :9jel0}oalIq

1102 yd1ew | :Bujusaiag jo sjeq

w04 piooay bBuiuaalog salijenby

93



"8}ISgaM S,|10UN0Y 38U} UO UoNedl|gnd Joj N ACD JS8I0-|[UNOBIq@SEWOy) AGQE 0} puas asea|d 8)9|dwod Usypa

¢ul papodad aq Buluaalos siyl [I1m YN U2IUM v

8jeq ‘ainjeubis -ainjeubis s19910 JOIYD "€C

¢bBulusaias ayj

Jo Jed se paynuapl usaq aonoeid poob jo sajdwexs 1o sdnoib

SUON 9y} jJo Aue 1o} sanss| ssalppe 0} Suoljoe JuaLnd Aue aneH "gg

&ul papnjaul

ue|d ao1A9s Jyouag aq suojoe asay} ||Im ue|d YJom 10 ssauIsNg ‘@dIAI9S YIIYM LT

abejuadiad ay) ul jJuswaAoldwi weje zeueys 2102/€0 ‘uoijewiojul Buiopuow Ayienba jo ajes uopoa|j0s anoidwy|
elId}I) SS929Ng/aU0)SI|IN a|qisuodsay uosiad | ajeoasawi] uonoy

‘pepaau se smod alow Buippe ‘|Iny Ui uejd uonoe sy} 8)e|dwWod ases|d ¢ Eelep 10 UOKeWIosUl JY}INS Uieyqo o3 1o AJAnoe siyy ybnouayy Ayunyioddo jo Ayijenba
ajowo.d Jaypuny 0} ‘yoedwi asionpe/jelyuaIayip [enuajod Aue aAowal 1o aonpal 0} 3.} oA [|Im suojoe Jeym ‘pasinbal jou s| Juswssasse joedwi [Ny e | 02

“sjuaidioal Jyauaq Jo
dnoub ooads Aue Ae pajoalip ale yoiym suijoe d110ads ou aJe 818y} pue walsAs uoleljsiuiwpe
Jyauaq 8y} jo uoiesado |esauab ayj anosdw [jim yoiym suonoe pasodoid ueld uooe ayy | N

épalinbai juswissosse
joeduwii ||nj € SI 9A0QE /| — L SUOI}I3S JO SISe] 9y} UQ 61

Z1/110Z Buunp panosdwi aq [|im 821AISS JJBUSQ 8y} A1031 oym sdnoub Ajjenbas jle uo uonos)j0o eyeq

¢ Ppauiejqo aq uoew.osul
Jeyj ueds Moy pue aldyp ¢joeduw ayy puejsiapun
J8y3eq 0} paiinbal sI ejep 10 UoReWIOUI JBYN JBUM 8L

ésanng fjenb3 ay3 jo Aue o3 uonejas
Ul UoeUIWLIISIP [NJMejUN 3}N}3suod joedwl ayj pjno) “/1

ON

¢£Pajoayje aq o} Ajay1] ajdoad jo Jaquinu ay} pue ainjeu s}
JO SwJa)} Ul d2UdIdYIP 3y} sI Juesyiubis moy ‘anoge p|L — 8
ul pajsi| sdnoub Ajijenba ayj Jo yoes 1oj palopisuod uaym

Ajanoe ayy jo 3oedwi ayy ul dsuasayIp Aue si aiayy j| "9l

"spjoyasnoy asoyj uo joeduwi aalisod e ajesauab pjnoys a2IAI8s ay |

iuoseal Jayjo Aue 1oy 1o dnoib auo Joy Aylunjioddo
J0 Ajijenba Bupowoud jo spunoub uo payisnf aq
ued paynuapl uasq sey joedwi aapebaujasianpe ue §| Gl

"Spjoyasnoy ajgelaujnA pue awooul Mo e pajebie} siJi Jey) S 90IAISS JJauaq Sy} O ainjeu ay |

‘suoijejal Ajjunwwod poob HGuowoud uo pue (sispuayo
-X9/S,191e9/SaWO0IUI JOMO] uo asoy} "6-a) dnoub sayjo Aue

SO0IAISS Jljauaq 8y} Jo dn aye) ssasse 0} Siseq Jejnbal e U PaIO}IUOW SJ. SIBWO0)SND Jyauag

uo sjoeduwi jepuajod Jayjo Aue jo sjiejap aAIb ases|d 1

£S1y3 Hoddns 03 aney noA op 89UdpIAS JeUyM d °Cl

syuaidioal Jyauaq |e 0} Alaalap adialas aaoldwi pinoys suonoe pasodold ay | A

‘uoseal e anIb asea|d |esynau s Joedwi 8y} §| ¢Yloq

Joj |enuajod e ai1ay} si Jo asianpe Jo aalsod joedwi sy} S|
¢,99 a1y} Aew joedwi Ayjenba jo pury Jeypp

éyoedwi ue aiayj s - fyijenba uonejuauo [enxag e "¢l

94



Agenda ltem 7

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
22 MARCH 2011

1.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

41

4.2

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2011/12
Head of Audit and Risk Management

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to set out the underlying principles applied in the Internal
Audit planning process and seek the Governance and Audit Committee’s approval of
the Internal Audit Plan for 2011/12.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Governance and Audit Committee approve the Internal Audit Plan for
2011/12 attached at Appendix 1.

ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY OFFICERS

Borough Solicitor

No comments to add.

Borough Treasurer

The budget for 2011/12 includes £194,290 for the provision of contracted out internal
audit services. This Plan can be met within these resources.

Strategic Risk Management

Robust internal audit arrangements are an important part of effective risk
management. Audit plans should be targeted to areas of greatest risk to the Council
and individual internal audit reviews should focus on controls in place to mitigate risk
and highlight any gaps in assurance.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Internal Audit Requirements

The Council is required under the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England)
Regulations to “maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit of its
accounting records and of its systems of internal control in accordance with the
proper practices in relation to internal control.” The Council delegates responsibility
for the provision of the internal audit service and for ensuring this requirement is met
to the Borough Treasurer.

The regulations require conformance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal
Audit in Local Government which defines internal audit as follows:-

“Internal Audit is an assurance function that provides an independent and objective
opinion to the organisation on the control environment by evaluating its effectiveness
in achieving the organisation’s objectives. It objectively examines, evaluates and
reports on the adequacy of the control environment as a contribution to the proper,
economic, efficient and effective use of resources.”

95



4.3

4.4

4.5

More specifically, Internal Audit aims to: -

o satisfy the legal requirements of a Local Authority Internal Audit Service, including
maintaining an ‘adequate and effective’ audit of the Council’'s accounting records
and providing an annual opinion on the adequacy of the Council’s control
environment;

e examine, evaluate and report independently and objectively on the adequacy of
management’s arrangements to secure the proper use of resources (economy,
efficiency and effectiveness);

e assist management in achieving its objectives, managing its risks and
establishing and maintaining adequate systems of internal control

e assist management, where appropriate, in the investigation of alleged fraud, theft,
corruption or other irregularity; and

e ensure External Audit can continue to place reliance on Internal Audit’s work, to
avoid duplication and minimise audit fees.

Internal Audit provides independent assurance on the control environment and acts
as a deterrent to would-be fraudsters but for Internal Audit to provide full assurance
on all activities and transactions across the organisation, the Council would need to
commit significantly more resources to internal audit services than is realistically
available. Full assurance could only ever be achieved by checking every transaction
and this would not deliver value for money. Internal Audit’'s work is planned so that
Members and Officers can rely on Internal Audit to detect significant control
weaknesses for the areas audited and transactions sampled and is hence directed to
areas of greatest risk. Whilst Internal Audit reviews alone, although carried out with
due professional care, cannot guarantee that frauds will be detected, Internal Audit is
only one element of the governance framework which includes for example the
Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers, the Whistle Blowing Policy and
management actions to ensure effective internal control.

Development of the Annual Internal Audit Plan

Risking Methodology

Given the finite resources available to spend on internal audit, the Internal Audit Plan
is risk driven to ensure that the audit resources available are targeted to focus on
those areas of the Council’s business that have the greatest influence on the
achievement of it objectives. The process for developing the annual Internal Audit
Plan starts with a risk based methodology which is used to assess Council activities,
assets, and income and expenditure streams by scoring these in terms of the
following criteria:

Materiality ~ based on monetary value as given in budget plans and previous
outturn to ensure that the Plan has adequate coverage of areas of high spend
and income. The assessment of materiality also takes into account the
significance of the activity for the Authority for example where a monetary value
cannot be clearly assigned such as corporate governance matters
Fraud/lrregularity ~ the potential risk of fraud or irregularity for individual activities
for example the risk is higher where the handling of cash is involved and hence a
higher score has been assigned to such activities

Third Part Sensitivity ~ higher scores have been given to areas on which third
parties place reliance. For example, a higher score has been assigned to data
quality encompassing performance indictors reported to central government
departments

96



4.6

47

4.8

4.9

4.10

Internal Control Environment ~assessing the expected robustness of the control
environment based on previous audit opinions, local knowledge and feedback
from Finance and other officers. Where the control environment has been
assessed as weak, a higher score has been assigned.

Time since the last audit ~ the longer the elapsed time since the last audit, the
higher the score given to the activity

Other Assurance Coverage ~ consideration has been given to whether external
inspections or external audits have been completed which would already provide
the Council with assurance. Where such assurance is available a lower score
has been assigned, for example fixed assets which are subject to detailed audit
by the Audit Commission as part of their audit of the financial statements

The Likely Effectiveness of Audit ~ Given finite resources it is important that audit
work focuses on areas where Internal Audit can add value and where greatest
assurance can be given and hence higher scores have been given to such
areas, for example school audits.

Following this risk assessment, a number of other factors were considered in
producing the detailed Plan and these are summarised below.

Key Financial Systems

Emphasis has been placed on ensuring that there is audit coverage of the key
financial systems which are fundamental to financial control at the Council and hence
are included in the Internal Audit Plan each year. The 2011/12 Plan includes 132
days on key financial systems representing 22% of the total days in the Plan. These
systems provide the underlying data for the annual financial statements audited by
our external auditors. The Internal Audit Plan is structured to ensure that the external
auditors can place maximum reliance on the work of Internal Audit on the key
financial systems thus minimising external audit fees in respect of the accounts.

Governance

The CIPFA Statement on the role of the Head of Internal Audit in public service
organisations published in 2010 emphasises the role that the Head of Internal Audit
in a public service organisation plays in delivering the organisation’s strategic
objectives by championing best practice in governance and giving an objective and
evidence based opinion on all aspects of governance, risk management and internal
control. The CIPFA Statement concludes that the demand for better public services
within a complex environment has strengthened the need for effective governance
and that Internal Audit is one of the cornerstones of effective governance. Each year,
the Annual Plan incorporates aspects of governance arrangements for testing. For
example, the 2011/12 Plan includes audits on delegations across all directorates.

Probity

Probity audits provide assurance over the proper administration of the Authority’s
activities. In drawing up the annual Internal Audit Plan, focus is placed on ensuring
there is coverage of areas where in any organisation there is potential risk of abuse
for example procurement cards.

Changes to Regulation, Procedures or IT Systems

Internal Audit reviews have been included in the Plan where significant changes to
key procedures and processes have been identified or where new IT systems or
major upgrades are being implemented. Examples of reviews included for this reason
are the audits of free school meals and the update to the Agresso Financial System.

97



4.1

412

5.1

5.2

Internal Audit Plan 2011/12

The Internal Audit Plan for 2011/12 is attached at Appendix 1 for the Committee’s
review and approval.

To enable us to resource the delivery of the Internal Audit Plan for 2011/12, in
addition to H W Controls and Assurance who are the Council’s internal audit service
contractor, it is intended that Reading Internal Audit Services will provide additional
support in the delivery of the Plan under S113 of the Local Government Act 1972
which permits local authorities to provide staffing resources to other authorities.

CONSULTATION

Principal Groups Consulted

The Chief Executive, Directors and Chief Officers at the Council, the Council’s
external auditors and the Council’s internal audit services contractors (H W Controls
and Assurance).

Method of Consultation

At the initial drafting stage, discussions were held with the Section 151 Officer and
other key officers from the directorates. A meeting was also held with the contractor’s
Computer Auditor and the Chief Officer: Information Services to discuss the proposed
IT audits. The draft Plan was then circulated to the Chief Executive, Assistant Chief
Executive, Section 151 Officer and Directors for discussion at their DMTs and
comments made on the content of the draft Plan and timing of audits have been
taken into account in the Plan attached at Appendix 1.

Contact for further information

Sally Hendrick — 01344 352092
sally.hendrick@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

Doc. Ref
Governance and Audit Committee Report Internal Audit Plan 11-12

98



66

SUMMARY OF ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2011/12

AUDIT DAYS BY QUARTER TOTAL DAYS
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

CORPORATE SERVICES 0 23 119 5 147

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S OFFICE 0 21 0 0 21

ENVIRONMENT CULTURE AND

COMMUNITIES 58 30 46 25 159

CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND

G 745 34 11.5 21 141

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 28 10 12 20 70

COMPUTER AUDITS 7 13 15 18 53

TOTAL 167.5 131 203.5 89 591

APPENDIX 1



001

CORPORATE SERVICES

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINK TO LINK PROBITY
BE COVERED BY THE AUDIT Q1| Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
FINANCE Review and testing of controls 5 0 0 5 0 v v v
over investment of Council’'s Financial and
funds. Economic
Treasury Management
Review and testing of controls 12 [0 [0 |12 |0 4 v v
over authorisation and payment Financial and
Creditors of supplier invoices. Economic
Review and testing of controls 12 0 0 12 |0 v v v
over the recording, collection Financial and
Debtors and write-off of debts. Economic
Review and testing of controls 15 0 0 15 |0 4 v
Main Accounting over general ledger which is Financial and
(including the basis for Council’s financial Economic
reconciliations) reporting and accounts.
Purchasing and Review and testing of controls 10 0|0 ]10]0 4 v v v
Ordering in place over procuring and Financial and
ordering. Economic
Payroll and Pre- Review and testing of controls 15 0 0|15 ]| 0 4 v
Employment Checks in place to ensure salaries are Financial and
accurately paid and only to Economic
individuals properly employed
by the Council. Staffing
Procurement Cards Review and testing of 5 0| 0] 5 |0 v v 4 v
procedures and controls in Financial and
place over the new Economic
procurement cards following
wider implementation across
the Council.
REVENUES v
Financial and
Cash Management Review and testing of controls 10 0 0|10 |0 4 Economic 4
over the collection, recording




L0}

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINK TO LINK PROBITY
BE COVERED BY THE AUDIT Q1| Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
and banking of payments made
to the Council including on line,
cash, cheque and credit card
payments.
Review and testing of controls 10 0 0 10 | O 4 v
in place over calculation, billing Financial and
Council Tax and collection of Council Tax. Economic
Review and testing of controls 10 0 0|10 | O 4 4
in place over calculation, billing Financial and
and collection of non-domestic Economic
NNDR rates.
Audit review to confirm whether 3 0| 3 0|0 v 4 v
delegated authorities have Financial and
been properly determined, Economic
GOVERNANCE approved, documented and
communicated to relevant Staffing
officers and are updated on a
regular basis to ensure that Litigation and
staff changes and amendments Legislation
to responsibilities are properly
Officer Delegations reflected.
Review of effectiveness and 5 0| 5 0 0 v v 4
compliance with controls over Financial and
the claiming and payment of Economic
Officer expenses expenses Staffing
GENERAL
FOLLOW UP OF Review of progress on 5 0 0 5 0
RECOMMENDATIONS | implementation of agreed
recommendations in previous
audit reports.
CONTINGENCY Contingency days 30 0 |15 10 | 5
TOTAL 147 0 |23 |119] 5




cOl

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S OFFICE

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO BE DAYS QUARTER KEY LINK TO LINK PROBITY
COVERED BY THE AUDIT Q1 | Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
Review of management information 15 0|15 O 0 v
Data Quality collated and monitored
Audit review to confirm whether 3 0[3]0]|0 v v v
delegated authorities have been Financial and
properly determined, approved, Economic
documented and communicated to
GOVERNANCE | relevant officers and are updated on a Staffing
regular basis to ensure that staff
Officer changes and amendments to Litigation and
Delegations responsibilities are properly reflected. Legislation
Effectiveness and compliance with 3 0|3 |01]O0 v 4 4
controls over the claiming and Financial and
Officer payment of expenses Economic
expenses Staffing
TOTAL 21 0 211 0] 0




€0l

ENVIRONMENT CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREATO | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINK TO LINK PROBITY
BE COVERED BY THE AUDIT Q1 | Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
Follow up of DWP action plan 3 3 010 0 v v
and action pla.n to address Financial and v
recommendations raised by the Economic
Audit Commission in their report
HOUSING “Certification of the Housing
Benefit Claim 2009/10”. (To be
Housing & Council Tax undertaken in second half of
Benefits June)
Housing & Council Tax | Spot check testing 15 10| 5 0 0 v v
Benefits Fi . v
inancial and
Economic
Housing & Council Tax | Audit of controls in place over 15 0 0|15] 0 v v
Benefits entitlement, calculation and Fi . v
: : inancial and
payment of housing and Council Economic
Tax benefits.
Housing Rents/Deposits | Follow up of actions identified by | 5 5 0 0 0 v
(audit in-house) 2010/11 internal audit review Financial and v
Economic
Housing Audit of procedures for ensuring | 15 15| 0 0 0
that the Council meets its v v
housing responsibilities. This will Demands for
include audit of controls over the Services
housing register application,
verification and nomination
processes and effectiveness
and compliance with controls
over procedures for responding
to homelessness.
Housing Audit of procedures and controls | 10 0 (10| O 0
in place over BFC My Homebuy, v 4
the Council Mortgage Scheme Demands for
and the Cash Incentive Scheme. Services




1401

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINKTO LINK PROBITY
BE COVERED BY THE AUDIT Q1| Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
Financial and
Economic
.ﬂiﬁmgg‘fRﬁND Review of the effectiveness and 5 510 0 0 v Y
Building control and compliance with procedures and Financial and
land ch%r s controls for ensuring that income Economic
9 is properly charged and
collected on a timely basis.
Ili)ﬂevelopmen: lanni Review of the effectiveness and 5 5 0 0 0 v v
anagement - planning compliance with procedures and Financial and
controls for ensuring that income Economic
is properly charged and
collected on a timely basis.
Review of effectiveness and 7 0 0 0 7 v
ENVIRONMENT AND compliance with controls under Financial and
PUBLIC PROTECTION | the new waste collection Economic
contract for ensuring that the
Waste Collection Council is charged in
accordance with the contract,
payments are properly
authorised and monitoring
performance.
v
LEISURE AND Finandial and ‘
Economic
South Hill Park Procedures and controls in 5 0 5 0|0
place to determine level of
capital for the ground restoration
project and revenue funding and
monitor that expenditure is in
accordance with the agreements
with the Trust and Heritage




GOl

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREATO | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINK TO LINK PROBITY
BE COVERED BY THE AUDIT Q1 | Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS

Lottery Fund.

Easthampstead This review will focus across the | 10 10| O 0 0 v

Conference Centre Centre on controls over the Financial and v
incurring of and payment of Economic
expenditure in line with Council
regulations and the approval
(including through imprest and
petty cash) and identification,
billing, recording and collection
of income.

Downshire Golf Club Procedures and controls in 7 0 7 0 0 v
place for the collection of Financial and v
income, petty cash, imprests, Economic
inventory, fixed assets and
incurring and approval of
expenditure.

Bracknell Sports and Procedures and controls in 7 0 0 7 0 v

Leisure Centre place for the collecthn of Financial and v
income, petty cash, imprests, Economic
inventory, fixed assets and
incurring and approval of
expenditure.

Libraries Two site visits to review local 6 0 0 6 0 v
processes including those over Financial and v
ordering, receipting and Economic
recording, budget monitoring,
income, petty cash and
inventory controls.

Cash Spot checks Probity checks at a sample of 3 0 0 0 3 v 4
leisure sites Financial and

Economic




901t

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINK TO LINK PROBITY
BE COVERED BY THE AUDIT Q1 | Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
PERFORM. AND Controls in place over procuring v 4 v
RESOURCES and ordering. Financial and
Purchasing and ordering 10 [0 | 0] 0|10 Economic
Audit review to confirm whether | 3 O[3 |0]O0 v 4 v
GOVERNANCE delegated authorities have been Financial and
properly determined, approved, Economic
Officer Delegations documented and communicated
to relevant officers and are Staffing
updated on a regular basis to
ensure that staff changes and Litigation and
amendments to responsibilities Legislation
are properly reflected.
Officer expenses Effectiveness and compliance 5 5 0 0 0 v 4 4
with controls over the claiming Financial and
and payment of expenses Economic
Staffing
283#2“&“%‘5 Revie\_/v of effgctiveness and 18 0 0180 Finan;al and
compliance with controls in Economic
S106 Agreements place to ensure that monies as
agreed under S106 agreements Litiqation and
are received when due, properly Lg islation
recorded and expended in 9
accordance with the terms of the
agreement within timescales set
out in the agreements and also
accordance with any specific
conditions.
GENERAL 5 00| 0] 5
FOLLOW UP OF Review of progress on
RECOMMENDATIONS | implementation of agreed




LO}

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINKTO LINK PROBITY
BE COVERED BY THE AUDIT Q1| Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
recommendations in previous
audit reports.
TOTAL 159 58 |30 |46 | 25




801

CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND LEARNING

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINK TO LINK PROBITY
TO BE COVERED BY THE Q1 [ Q2| Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
AUDIT SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
SCHOOLS Review of controls in place v v
over new centralised Financial and
Free School Meals arrangements for assessing Economic
entitlement and approving 7 0 0 0 7
free school meals. The
review will include
compliance with controls for
accessing DWP records.
Wildmoor Heath School Follow up due to limited 2 0 0 0 2 4 v
(audit in-house) assurance conclusion in Financial and
2009/10 Economic
Staffing
Review of key budgetary 5 0 0 5 0 v v
Easthampstead Park | and financial controls and Financial and
School (Secondary) pre-employment checks. Economic
Staffing
. A Review of key budgetary 35 0 0 0 |35 v 4
Birch Hill Primary and financial controls and Financial and
School pre-employment checks. Economic
Staffing
. Review of key budgetary 35 35| 0 0 0 v v
Ascot Heath CE Junior | 404 financial controls and Financial and
School pre-employment checks. Economic
Staffing




601

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINK TO LINK PROBITY
TO BE COVERED BY THE Q1 [ Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
AUDIT SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
Review of key budgetary 35 35|10 0 0 v v
and financial controls and Financial and
pre-employment checks. Economic
College Town Infant
and Nursery School Staffing
Coll T . Review of key budgetary 35 35| 0 0 0 v 4
ollege Town Junior and financial controls and Financial and
School pre-employment checks. Economic
Staffing
s Review of key budgetary 35 35| 0 0 0 v v
Fox Hill Primary and financial controls and Financial and
School pre-employment checks. Economic
Staffing
Hollv Spri . Review of key budgetary 35 35| 0 0 0 v 4
olly Spring Junior and financial controls and Financial and
School pre-employment checks. Economic
Staffing
. Review of key budgetary 3.5 35| 0 0 0 v v
Ngw Scotland Hill and financial controls and Financial and
Primary School pre-employment checks. Economic
Staffing
Owlsmoor Primary Review of key budgetary 35 35| 0 0 0 v v
School and financial controls and Financial and
pre-employment checks. Economic
Staffing




Ot

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINK TO LINK PROBITY
TO BE COVERED BY THE Q1 | Q2| Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
AUDIT SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
Review of key budgetary 35 35| 0 0 0 v v
and financial controls and Financial and
St. Joseph’s Catholic pre-employment checks. Economic
Voluntary Aided .
School Staffing
Review of key budgetary 3.5 35| 0 0 0 4 v
. , and financial controls and Financial and
St. Mlchael§ CE pre-employment checks. Economic
Voluntary Aided
School (Sandhurst) Staffing
. . Review of key budgetary 3.5 35| 0 0 0 4 v
Warfield Primary and financial controls and Financial and
School pre-employment checks. Economic
Staffing
. . Review of key budgetary 35 35| 0 0 0 v v
Binfield C E Primary | 51 financial controls and Financial and
School (Aided) pre-employment checks. Economic
Staffing
Review of key budgetary 35 35| 0 0 0 v v
Harmans Water and financial controls and Financial and
Primary School pre-employment checks. Economic
Staffing
_ , Review of key budgetary 35 0 0 [ 35| 0 v v
St Michael's and financial controls and Financial and
Easthampstead CE pre-employment checks. Economic
Voluntary Aided




FEE

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINK TO LINK PROBITY
TO BE COVERED BY THE Q1 | Q2| Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
AUDIT SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
Primary School Staffing
Crown Wood Primary | Review of key budgetary 35 35| 0 0 0 v v
School (audit in-house) | and financial controls and Financial and
pre-employment checks. Economic
Staffing
Advice to Head Teacheron | 2 1 1 0 0 v v
Jennett’'s Park School key budgetary and financial Financial and
controls and pre- Economic
employment checks
Staffing
Jennett’'s Park School Review of key budgetary 3.5 0 0 0 |35 v v
and financial controls and Financial and
pre-employment checks. Economic
Staffing
Follow up 2010/11 audit 3 0 0 3 0 v 4
Off -site activities which concluded limited Financial and
assurance Economic
Litigation and
Legislation
Education Library Review of procedures and 6 6 0 0 0 v
Service controls in place over the Financial and
Education Library service Economic
which the Council is the lead
authority on for the local
area. The audit will review
controls over the purchase
of library stock, income and




¢

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINK TO LINK PROBITY
TO BE COVERED BY THE Q1 | Q2| Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
AUDIT SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
staff costs.
CHILDREN’S SOCIAL Establishment visit to review | 7 7 0 0 0 v v
CARE controls including those over Financial and
income, expenditure, staff Economic
Larchwood costs, imprests, client
monies and stock. Staffing
Youth Offending Service | Review of procedures and 4 0 4 0 0 v v
income, expendiure and Financial and
! ' Economic
imprests.
PERFORMANCE AND v
RESOURCES Financial and
Sandhurst Youth Centre Economic
(audit in-house) Follow up of 2010/11 audit 4 4 0 0 0 v
Staffing
Litigation and
Legislation
Youth Centres Two further establishment 8 0 8 0 0 v
visits to review controls Financial and
including those over income, Economic
expenditure, imprests and v
inventories. Staffing
Litigation and
Legislation
10 0 10 0 0 v
Audit of governance Financial and
Planned maintenance arrangements, budget Economic
and capital projects setting and monitoring v
controls for planned Demands for
maintenance and capital services
projects
Litigation and




CLI

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINK TO LINK PROBITY
TO BE COVERED BY THE Q1 | Q2| Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
AUDIT SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
Legislation
Major
Programmes
and Projects
Infrastructure
and
Maintenance
of Assets
YPLA Grant Return Sample testing to support 6 6 0 0 0 . ‘/ v
the YPLA Grant return Financial ‘i‘”d
Economic
Litigation and
Legislation
Purchasing and ordering Controls in place over 8 0 8 0 0 v 4 4
procuring and ordering. Financial and
Economic
GOVERNANCE Audit review to confirm 3 0 3 0 0 v v v
whether delegated Financial and
Officer Delegations authorities have been Economic
properly determined,
approved, documented and Staffing
communicated to relevant
officers and are updated on Litigation and
a regular basis to ensure Legislation
that staff changes and
amendments to




143"

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINK TO LINK PROBITY
TO BE COVERED BY THE Q1 [ Q2| Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
AUDIT SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
responsibilities are properly
reflected.
Effectiveness and 5 5 0 0 0 v v v
Officer expenses compliance with controls Financial and
over the claiming and Economic
payment of expenses
Staffing
GENERAL 5 0 0 0 5
FOLLOW UP OF Review of progress on
RECOMMENDATIONS implementation of agreed
recommendations in
previous audit reports.
TOTAL 141 745134 | 115 | 21




GLI

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINK TO LINK PROBITY
BE COVERED BY THE AUDIT Q1| Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
ADULTS AND v
COMMISSIONING Financial and v
Economic
Personal Budgets Review of effectiveness and
compliance with controls in 15 0 010 15 Demands for
place over eligibility, approval, services
allocation and payment of
personal budgets across Adult
Social Care and Health. The
review will cover setting
boundaries for the flexibility of
use of budgets, processes for
assessing risk, determining the
appropriate levels of monitoring
of individual cases and
recipients accountability for how
monies are spent.
Review of controls over pooled 5 0| 0|5 ]0 v
Shared Budgets budgets for equipment and Financial and v
intermediate care Economic
Demands for
services
OLDER PEOPLE AND Establishment visits to review 10 10| O 0 0 v
LONG TERM controls including those over Financial and v
CONDITIONS income, expenditure, staff costs, Economic
Heathlands - residential | imprests, client monies and
and day care centre stock. Staffing
Demands for
services




9Lt

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREATO | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINK TO LINK PROBITY
BE COVERED BY THE AUDIT Q1 | Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
Ladybank Establishment visit to review 5 5 0 0 0 v
controls including those over Financial and 4
income, expenditure, staff costs, Economic
imprests, client monies and
stock. Staffing
Demands for
services
Drug and Alcohol Team | Review of effectiveness and 5 05|00 v
compliance with controls for Financial and
recording funding received, Economic
commissioning services,
monitoring performance and Demands for
making payments. services
LEARNING Establishment visits to the 10 10| O 0 0 4
DISABILITY learning disability provider Financial and 4
Learning Disability service to review controls Economic
Provider Service including those over income,
expenditure, staff costs, Staffing
imprests, client monies and
stock. The review will cover Demands for
Waymead, Breakthrough and services
Headspace.
PERFORMANCE AND | Review of effectiveness and 7 0| O 7 0 v v
RESOURCES compliance with controls over Financial and 4
CONTROCC payments made via Economic
CONTRACC. The review will
take place after e payments has
been introduced.
GOVERNANCE Audit review to confirm whether | 3 30|00 v v v
delegated authorities have been Financial and




LI}

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO | DAYS QUARTER KEY LINK TO LINK PROBITY
BE COVERED BY THE AUDIT Q1 | Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | FINANCIAL | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
SYSTEM RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
Officer Delegations properly determined, approved, Economic
documented and communicated
to relevant officers and are Staffing
updated on a regular basis to
ensure that staff changes and Litigation and
amendments to responsibilities Legislation
are properly reflected.
Effectiveness and compliance 5 O[5 |00 v 4 4
Officer expenses with controls over the claiming Financial and
and payment of expenses Economic
Staffing
GENERAL 5 0| 0] 0|5
FOLLOW UP OF Review of progress on
RECOMMENDATIONS | implementation of agreed
recommendations in previous
audit reports.
TOTAL 70 28 | 10 | 12 | 20




8L

COMPUTER AUDITS
SUMMARY OF COMPUTER AUDIT DAYS

AUDIT DAYS BY QUARTER TOTAL DAYS
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

CORPORATE SERVICES 7 13 5 13 38
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0
ENVIRONMENT CULTURE AND 0 0 5 0 5
COMMUNITIES

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 0 0 0 5 5
EIIE-IALRDNITEg YOUNG PEOPLE AND 0 0 5 0 5
TOTAL 7 13 15 18 53




61}

CORPORATE SERVICES

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO BE DAYS QUARTER KEY IT LINK TO LINK PROBITY
COVERED BY THE AUDIT Q1 | Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | SYSTEM | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
Audit of the upgrade of the existing 5 0 0 0 5 v
Agresso Agresso financial system from Version 5.4 4
to Version 5.5. Financial and
Economic
Information
Management
and Services
Change Review of the design and effectiveness of | 7 7 |0 |0 |O
Management controls in place for the IT change 4
management process. Information
Management
and Services
Desktop Audit of the Thin Client project to refresh 8 0 0 0 8
Virtualisation - | 532 desk tops covering both the corporate 4
Thin Client network and the Library public network Information
project estate during the 2011/2012 by delivering Management
a remote “Windows PC” experience on and Services
legacy and non-PC devices. The audit will
include review of arrangements to ensure
adequacy of service processing power
and bandwidth.
IP Telephony Review of access and security controls 8 0 8 0 0
(IPT) Platform and arrangements for ensuring capacity 4
requirements are met for the IP Telephony Information
network Management
and Services
Compliance The process for ensuring the Council 5 0 0 5 0
with PCI Data complies with the requirements of the 4
Security Payment Card Industry Data Security Financial and
Standards Standards relating to the collection and Economic
processing of customer credit and debit




oct

CORPORATE SERVICES

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO BE DAYS QUARTER KEY IT LINK TO LINK PROBITY
COVERED BY THE AUDIT Q1| Q2| Q3 | Q4 | SYSTEM | STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
card details. Information
Management
and Services
IT Follow-Up Follow up of recommendation raised in 5 0 5 0 0
previous IT audit reports. 4
Information
Management
and Services
TOTAL 38 7 13 |5 13




Iclh

ENVIRONMENT CULTURE AND COMMUNITIES

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO BE COVERED | DAYS QUARTER KEY IT LINK TO LINK PROBITY
BY THE AUDIT Q1| Q2| Q3 | Q4 | SYSTEM STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
RISKS ARRANGEMENTS
IT Application controls review of the system 5 0 0 5 0 v
BACAS | Used at the cemetery and crematorium. The v
system | @udit will assess the adequacy and Information
effectiveness of internal controls in Management
operation over access, data input and and Services
processing, output, interface, audit trail and
arrangements for backup and recovery.
TOTAL 5 0 0 5 0




44

CHILDREN YOUNG PEOPLE AND LEARNING

AUDIT | DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO BE COVERED | DAYS QUARTER KEY IT LINK TO LINK GOVERNANCE | PROBITY
BY THE AUDIT Q1| Q2| Q3 | Q4 | SYSTEM STRATEGIC ARRANGEMENTS
RISKS
Audit of migration of the ONE (Education | 5 0 |0 |5 |O v
Capita Management system) software from its inf v
ONE existing Powerbuilder environment to the M” °rmat'°”t
(EMs) | industry standard Dot Net (.net) a:d”gge?\?fgs
technology including infrastructure
requirements.
TOTAL 5 0 0 5 0




ecl

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH

AUDIT DESCRIPTION OF AREA TO BE DAYS QUARTER KEY IT LINK TO LINK PROBITY
COVERED BY THE AUDIT Q1 Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | SYSTEM STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE
RISKS ARRANGEMENTS

Audit of IT controls over the Controcc 5 0 0 0 5 v
software within IAS used for financial 4
payments and personal budgets. The audit Information

Integrated will assess the a_dequacy and _ Madnggement

Adults effectiveness of internal controls in ana services

System - operation over access, data input and

(Controcc) processing, output, interface, audit trail
and arrangements for backup and
recovery.

TOTAL 5 0 0 0 5




This page is intentionally left blank

124



Agenda Iltem 8

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
22 MARCH 2011

1.1

21

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

41

4.2

TOWN CENTE LAND DISPOSALS
Director of Corporate Services — Legal

PURPOSE OF DECISION

This report proposes a minor amendment to the Constitution to permit the
Bracknell Town Centre Regeneration Committee to approve the disposal of
land required in connection with the re-development of Bracknell Town
Centre.

RECOMMENDATION

That Section 5.5 of Part 2 of the Council’s Constitution be amended as
proposed in Section 4 of this report.

ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS

Borough Solicitor

The Borough Solicitor is the author of this report.

Borough Treasurer

There are no financial implications directly arising.

Equalities Impact Assessments

Not relevant.

Strategic Risk Management Issues

Not relevant.
SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Section 5.5 of Part 2 of the Council’'s Constitution (Sub-delegation of
Executive functions) requires that the disposal of land over 0.5 hectares or
above £500,000 be authorised at a meeting of the Executive (unless certified
to be a matter of overriding urgency by both the Leader and the Chief
Executive in which case authorisation may be granted by an Executive
Member).

The Bracknell Town Centre Regeneration Committee is charged with
discharging Executive functions relating to the proposed re-development of
Bracknell Town Centre. The terms of reference of the Committee include the
following:-

“Formulation of the Council’s property strategy within Bracknell Town Centre
including dealings with existing landowners.....”

125



4.3 Notwithstanding the foregoing, proposed land disposals in excess of 0.5
hectares must be approved by the full Executive even though they may be
required in connection with Town Centre re-development. In practice this
means that proposed disposals are considered both by the Committee and
the Executive, a process which is unnecessarily bureaucratic.

4.4 It is therefore proposed that the Council’s Constitution be amended to provide
that land disposals in excess of 0.5 hectares required in connection with the
re-development of Bracknell Town Centre may be approved by the
Committee.

Background Papers
None.

Contact for Further Information
Alex Jack, Borough Solicitor (01344) 355679
Alex.jack@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

Doc Ref:
Aj/flreports/Governance and Audit Committee — 22" March — Town Centre Land
Disposals

126



Agenda ltem 9

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
22 MARCH 2011

1.1

21

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

41

4.2

4.3

AMENDMENTS TO THE COUNCIL’S CONSTITUTION
Director of Corporate Services — Legal

PURPOSE OF DECISION

This report seeks approval to amendments to the Council’'s Constitution which are
proposed as a result of the recent introduction of the Regulatory Enforcement and
Sanctions Act 2008 and the requirements of the Council to become the primary
authority under the act.

RECOMMENDATION

That Part 2 Table 1 General Powers of the Director of Environment, Culture and
Communities be amended at paragraph 1.11 to add the general duties under
the Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008 be one of his general
functions.

ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS

Borough Solicitor

The Borough Solicitor is the author of this report.

Borough Treasurer

There are no financial implications directly arising save that after 10 hours of Primary
Authority work the Council is entitled to charge under Section 31 of the Act. The
legislation will generate a level of income for the Council.

Equalities Impact Assessment

Not relevant.

Strategic Risk Management Issues

Not relevant.
SUPPORTING INFORMATION

A primary authority under Section 25 of the Act provides the single point of contact
for all local regulators, and uses its in-depth understanding of the partner business to
resolve issues more efficiently and ensure consistency.

Regardless of its size, a business operating across Council boundaries can form a
primary authority partnership with a single local authority in relation to regulatory
compliance. These partnerships can cover all environmental health and trading
standards legislation, or specific functions such as food safety or petroleum licensing.

The companies likely to be captured by these provisions are:-

127



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

412

Waitrose

Panasonic

Dell

Hewlett Packard

MCM Select Foods
Anglo European Trading

By working closely with the business a primary authority can apply regulations to
their specific circumstances providing robust and reliable advice. This advice must
be respected by all local regulators enabling the business to operate with assurance
and confidence.

A national inspection plan can be produced by the Primary Authority to improve the
effectiveness of inspection, avoid repeated checks, and enable better sharing of
information.

If a problem arises, the primary authority can co-ordinate enforcement action to
ensure that the business is treated consistently and that responses are proportionate
to the issue.

A business can choose what level of support it requires from the Primary Authority.
The question of resource in the partnership is up to the Council and businesses
concerned. Where necessary the Primary Authority can recover its costs other than
the first 10 hours per annum which are not rechargeable.

The benefits for businesses which are not rechargeable.

Primary authority delivers confidence to invest and grow. Businesses have access to
a stable source of information that draws on a detailed understanding of their
operations, prevents inconsistent interpretation of regulations, and applies regardless
of where stores, factories or offices are based or products are sold.

Where businesses seek to confirm that their existing procedures accord with the
rules or simply want to know what to do to comply, tailored advice is available from
their primary authority — with the assurance that it is respected by all local regulators.

By assessing the feedback from inspections conducted across the UK, primary
authorities can provide other Councils with evidence of compliance and
recommendations about how best to tackle broad issues quickly and effectively at a
local level. Both aspects serve to drive down costs for businesses in partnerships.

Benefits for Local Authorities

Primary authority is a means of helping businesses prosper without compromising
consumer protection from harm and fraud, by working with those that appreciate the
value of the advice they receive. Local authorities willing to deliver tailored expertise
can expect to see increased investment and employment within their local
communities. As partnerships are established, Councils also gain from access to
better intelligence.

The flexibility to adapt to local circumstances must be retained, eliminating

inconsistent interpretation serves to enhance the credibility of all local regulators, as
well as preventing unfair variations in the level of protection that the public receives.

128



This supports the creation of a level commercial playing field, giving businesses more
confidence to invest and grow within the Borough.

Background Papers
Sections 25 — 31 of the Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008.

Contact for Further Information
Simon Bull — Assistant Borough Solicitor — (01344) 353097
Simon.bull@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

Doc Ref:
Sb/flagreements/Governance and Audit Committee — March 2011
Amendments to the Council’s Constitution

129



This page is intentionally left blank

130



Agenda ltem

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
22 MARCH 2011

2.2

3.1

5.2

5.3

ANTI MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY
Borough Treasurer

PURPOSE OF DECISION

To approve the Councils Anti Money Laundering Policy and to agree steps to
implement the policy.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

Approve the Council's Anti Money laundering policy set out in Appendix A and
agree the steps to be taken to implement the policy.

That the Borough Treasurer is nominated as the Money Laundering Reporting
Officer

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

Money laundering is any attempt to use the proceeds of crime for legitimate
purposes. Although Public authorities are not legally obliged to implement the
provisions of the Money Laundering Regulations 2007, the Council and its individual
Members and employees have legal obligations relating to money laundering. It is
recommended by CIPFA that as a responsible public body, the Council should have
an approved anti money laundering policy. However it advises Councils that this
should be appropriate and proportionate for the protection of its staff and Members.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

None

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Money laundering is any action taken to conceal, arrange, use or possess the
proceeds of any criminal conduct. Criminals try to launder 'dirty money' in an attempt
to make it look 'clean’ in order to be able to use the proceeds without detection and to
put them beyond the reach of law enforcement and taxation agencies.

The legal and regulatory framework for the UK's anti-terrorist financing and anti
money laundering arrangements comprises:

*  The Terrorism Act 2000 (TA) as amended by the Anti Terrorism Crime and
Security Act 2001 and the Terrorism Act 2006;

*  The Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (POCA) as amended by The Serious
Organised Crime and Police Act 2005; and

* The Money Laundering Regulations 2007 (MLR).

All individuals have obligations under these acts relating to money laundering.
Potentially any one could be caught by the money laundering provisions if they

131

10



5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.11

suspect money laundering and either become involved with it in some way and/or do
nothing about it.

The Council is not legally obliged to apply the provisions of the MLR 2007 because
public authorities are neither 'relevant persons' (as defined in the MLR) nor part of the
'regulated sector' (as defined in POCA 2002). However, as a prudent and
responsible public body, the Council's policy and procedures should be designed to
reflect the essence of the UK's anti-terrorist financing and anti money laundering
regimes.

Main Considerations

CIPFA have provided guidance and interpretation of the legislation as it relates to
Local Authorities in it's publication Combating Financial Crime Further Guidance On
Anti-Money Laundering (2009).

Although the Council's risk of exposure to money laundering is relatively low and
some of the provisions of the legal and regulatory framework do not apply, there is a
reputational risk for any authority that does not have adequate policies and
procedures in place. CIPFA's advice is that “public service organisations, including
those outside the scope of the regulations, should put in place appropriate and
proportionate anti-money laundering safeguards and reporting arrangements,
designed to enable them to detect and avoid involvement in the crimes described in
the legislation and regulations".

The risk is not only reputational. There is also a risk that individuals who, in the
course of Council business, become aware that criminal property or funds could be
involved may commit offences if a reasonable suspicion is not reported.

It is therefore important that appropriate and proportionate arrangements are
established to ensure that the Council, its staff and Members are protected as far as
practicable, notably by having in place a reporting mechanism, arrangements for
publicising the responsibilities of individuals and provisions for appropriate training
and education. The draft policy drawn up in accordance with CIPFA’s guidance is
attached as Appendix A.

Steps to Implement the Policy

The policy once approved will be made available to all staff and Members on the
Intranet along with further practical guidance. This guidance will include examples of
Money Laundering.

For the purposes of the policy, the Borough Treasurer has been nominated as the
Money Laundering Reporting Officer to whom suspicions should be reported in the
first instance and who will determine the need for internal investigation, in
consultation with the Chief Executive and/or the Borough Solicitor. Depending on the
result of that investigation the Borough Treasurer will arrange for a report to be
submitted to the National Criminal Intelligence Service.

The Staff most likely to be exposed to or suspicious of money laundering will receive
proportionate awareness training mainly delivered through the use of the intranet.
This staff will include those who potentially could receive individual cash payments of
over £1000, those who initiate or authorise refund from overpayment to the Council
or those involved in the management and operation of the Councils Investments and
Deposits (Treasury Management).

132



6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS

Borough Solicitor

6.1 Nothing to add to the report

Borough Treasurer

6.2 Nothing to add to the report

Equalities Impact Assessment

6.3 Equalities Impact Assessment form attached at Appendix B

Strategic Risk Management Issues

6.4 There are no major risks to the Council as it is advisory and not mandatory that an
anti-money laundering policy is adopted by the Council.

7 CONSULTATION

Principal Groups Consulted

71 None

Method of Consultation

7.2 None

Representations Received

7.3 None

Background Papers
CIPFA — Combating Financial Crime — Further Guidance on Anti Money Laundering (2009)

Contact for further information
Chris Herbert - 01344 355694
Chris.herbert@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

Doc. Ref
executive-report-template (November 2008)

133



APPENDIX A
THE MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY
1. Introduction

1.1 Bracknell Forest Borough Council, "the Council" takes a zero- tolerance approach to
fraud and corruption and as such will be taking a proactive approach to the
prevention, detection and reporting of suspected money laundering incidents.

1.2 This Anti-Money Laundering Policy sets out the Council's commitment to ensuring
compliance with the requirements of the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002, the Money
Laundering Regulations 2007 and Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) guidance for Local Authorities on Money Laundering.

2. Scope

2.1 The policy applies to:
*  All Council staff (permanent and temporary, including staff working
within schools)
*  Elected members
*  Agency staff
+  Consultants

2.2  The policy sits alongside the Council's Employee Code of Conduct and the Anti-
Fraud and Corruption Policy.

3. Definition
3.1 Money Laundering is defined as:

. The process by which the proceeds of crime are; concealed, disguised,
converted, transferred or removed from England, Wales, Scotland or
Northern Ireland.

. Being involved in an arrangement which a person knows or suspects
facilitates the acquisition, retention, use or control of criminal property.

. Acquiring, using or possessing criminal property.

3.2 There are also secondary offences of:

. Failure to disclose money laundering offences.
. Tipping off a suspect, either directly or indirectly.
. Prejudicing an investigation.

4. Requirements of Money Laundering Legislation

4.1 The CIPFA Guidance for Local Authorities on Money Laundering makes clear that
Local Authorities are not obliged to comply with the requirements of the Money
Laundering Regulations 2007. However the guidance does recommend that public
service organisations should embrace the underlying principles of the money
laundering legislation and regulations.

4.2 The Council is therefore required to produce its own internal policies and procedures
to prevent, detect and report suspicions of money laundering activities.

134



4.3

The Council will ensure that it adheres to the CIPFA Money Laundering Guidance for
Local Authorities. In particular:

. Ensuring that employees who are most likely to be exposed to or
suspicious of money laundering are aware of the requirements and
obligations placed on the Council and on them as individuals.

. Providing targeted training for those staff considered to be most likely to
encounter money laundering.

. Make arrangements to receive and manage the concerns of staff about
money laundering and their suspicion of it, to make internal enquiries and
to make reports where necessary to NCIS.

. Establish internal procedures to help forestall and prevent money
laundering.

5. Reporting of Money Laundering Concerns

5.1

52

5.3

5.4

The Council has nominated the Borough Treasurer as the main point of contact for
money laundering issues and to act as the nominated Money Laundering Reporting
Officer. Staff should report any suspicions to the Borough Treasurer immediately they
arise.

Suspicions may be reported informally by telephone or email and the responsible
officer will seek to establish the facts of the case and determine whether a formal
referral to the National Criminal Intelligence Service (NCIS) is appropriate.

Once the suspicions have been reported to the Borough Treasurer then the person
who has reported this must not make any further enquiries nor talk to other staff
about the matter in case they alert the person(s) involved. In this respect it is
important that they do not expose themselves to any of the secondary offences e.g.
indirectly ‘tipping off’ the suspect(s). Their obligations under the relevant legislation
in relation to anti money laundering will have been met in full by reporting the matter
to the Borough Treasurer.

The Money Laundering Reporting Officer, or their delegated officer, will consult with
staff as appropriate in order to investigate the matter.

6. Review of Policy

6.1

This policy will be subject to regular review and approval by the Governance and
Audit Committee.

135



Equality Impact Assessment Record

EIA Guidance

Please ensure that you have read the Council’s EIA Guidance booklet, available on Boris, before starting work on
your EIA, it should be read in conjunction with this form. If anything is unclear please contact your departmental
equality representative listed below. This form is designed to summarise the findings of your EIA. Please also
keep a record of your other discussions in producing the impact assessment.

Drafting your EIA

The boxes in this form are designed to expand please ensure that you add data, consultation results and other
information to back up any assertions that you make. A draft of this record form must be sent to the Councils
Equality Officer Abby Thomas and your departmental equality representative(s) (listed below) who will send you
comments on it before it is finalised and signed off by your Chief Officer. This step is important to check the
quality and consistency of ElAs across the Council.

Departmental Equality Representatives

ECC  Jane Eaton SCL Graham Symonds and llona Cowe
CSs Abby Thomas CXO  Stephanie Boodhna
Publishing

The Council is legally required to publish this EIA record form on the Councils website. Please send a copy of
the final version of the EIA record form to the Councils Equality Officer Abby Thomas to publish.

Date of EIA 14 February 2011 EIA
Directorate Corporate Services Guidance
Page Ref.

Part One - Initial Screening Record

1. Activity to be Anti-Money Laundering Policy

assessed

2. What is the [ Policy/strategy

activity?

3. Isita new or [] New

existing activity?

4. Who are the Chris Herbert, Borough Treasurer

members of the EIA

team?

5. Initial screening . ) .

assessment. 1: D_ogs the act'lwty have the potenjual to cause.adverse impact or
discriminate against different groups in the Councils workforce or the
community?

If the answer to either See

of these questions is

'yes' then itis No as the relevant acts and guidance on anti-money laundering are Pages
necessary to go ahead applicable to all.
with a full Equality 9-10
Impact Assessment.
2. Does the activity make a positive contribution to equalities?
No, as above.
6. Did Part 1: Initial ] No — full EIA not completed record ends here, please ensure this
Screening indicate record is signed by the Chief Officer in box 19 overleaf and then
that a full EIA was email to abby.thomas@bracknell-forest.gov.uk
necessary?

136




Agenda ltem 11

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
22 MARCH 2011

1.1

1.2

21

5.1

5.2

STATEMENT OF THE ACCOUNTS 2010/11 - REVISED ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Borough Treasurer

PURPOSE OF DECISION

Councils are required to prepare their 2010/11 accounts based on International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as interpreted for local authorities in the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2010/11 (the Code) issued by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). Previously the
accounts were based on UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) as
interpreted in the Statement of Recommended Practice (the SORP).

The transition from accounts based on the SORP to those based on the Code has
required significant changes to the Council’s Accounting Policies which are
presented to the Committee in this report for approval.

RECOMMENDATION
That the Committee:;

Approves the revised Accounting Policies attached at Annexe A.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

There have been significant changes to the Accounting Policies that will be
applied to the production of the Statement of the Accounts for 2010/11. These
therefore require approval by the Council (or Committee of the Council) before
the production of the accounts commences.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED
Not applicable.
SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Reasons for the change

The Chancellor's 2007 Budget announcement introduced IFRS based financial
reporting for the public sector from 2008/09. This was updated in the 2008 Budget
Report and as a result Central Government and Health were required to adopt IFRS
for the production of their 2009/10 annual accounts (with comparatives for 2008/09).
The adoption by Local Government will be required for annual accounts from
2010/11 (with comparatives for 2009/10).

The main reason for adopting IFRS is to bring benefits in consistency and

comparability between financial reports in the global economy and to follow private
sector best practice.

137



5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

The private sector has been using IFRS since 2005 and the Government decided
that the annual financial statements of Government Departments and other public
sector bodies will in future be prepared using IFRS, adapted as necessary, for the
public sector.

Main changes to the Accounting Policies

The first time adoption of IFRS has resulted in a significant change in accounting
policies in some key areas. The revised accounting policies are attached as Annexe
A and the main changes are summarised below.

Prior Period Adjustments

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or
to correct a material error. Previously only fundamental errors (one that is of such
significance as to destroy the validity of the financial statements) required
adjustment. This will make it much more likely that prior period adjustments will be
required. Where an adjustment is required, three balance sheets will now need to be
included in the accounts. For example, for 2010/11 balances sheets will be required
for 2008/09, 2009/10 and 2010/11.

Investment Property

Investment property is now specifically defined to refer to land and buildings held
solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties will also,
in future, be shown as a separate category of asset on the Balance Sheet. Any
changes to the value of investment properties will also need to be recognised
through the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement rather than initially
through the Revaluation Reserve.

Non-current Assets Held For Sale

A non-current asset held for sale is an asset where there is an expectation that the
amount included in the Balance Sheet will be recovered through a sale transaction
within the next 12 months rather than through the continuing use of the asset. Strict
criteria apply before an asset can be classified as held for sale and Investment
Property are excluded. If the criteria are met, this classification would apply to any
land or building asset which was not previously designated an investment property.
Under the code non-current assets held for sale are shown separately on the
Balance Sheet within current assets.

Lease Classification

Leases will still need to be classified as either finance leases or operating leases.
Previously the lease of land and buildings were considered together for the purposes
of the accounts. Under the code, the land and building elements will need to be
considered separately for classification. Unless title is expected to pass to the lessee
at the end of the lease term, the Council will be treating the lease of land as an
operating lease.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use

an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfiiment of
the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets. For example, the refuse

138



5.10

511

5.12

5.13

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

collection contract is dependant on the use of specific refuse vehicles and due to the
nature of the contract a finance lease is deemed to exist.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Under the code, cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. The revised accounting policies define short
term as those maturing within 3 months from the date of acquisition. All the Council’s
investments in Money Market Funds will in future be classified as cash equivalents
rather than short term investments in the Balance Sheet.

Employee Benefits

The Council will need to accrue for annual leave and flexi-time which has been
earned by staff at the reporting date but not yet taken.

Grants and Contributions

In future grants and contributions relating to capital and revenue expenditure will be
recognised immediately in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account,
except to the extent that the grant or contribution has a condition(s) attached to it that
the Council has not satisfied. Previously capital grants and contributions were
amortised to the Income and Expenditure Account over the life of the asset that they
financed and revenue grants and contributions were matched to the pattern of the
associated expenditure.

Componentisation

The Code places a much greater emphasis on componentisation. Where an asset
comprises two or more major components with substantially different useful
economic lives, each component is accounted for separately for depreciation
purposes and depreciated over its individual useful life. The requirement for
componentisation for depreciation purposes is only applicable to enhancement,
purchases, or revaluations after 1 April 2010.

ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS

Borough Solicitor

Nothing to add to the report.

Borough Treasurer

Comments are contained within the body of the report.

Equalities Impact Assessment

There are no equalities issues.

Strategic Risk Management Issues

The revised accounting policies have been subject to a review by District Audit for
compliance to the code and no significant issues have been identified to date.

139



Background Papers

Contact for further information

Alan Nash — 01344 352180
Alan.nash@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

Arthur Parker — 01344 352158
Arthur.parker@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

Doc. Ref
G:\Accounting Services\IFRS\Governance and Audit\Governance and Audit - Accounting Policies.doc

140



Annexe A

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accounts are set
out below.

Basis of Preparation

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local

Authority Accounting 2010/11 issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA). This Code of Practice is the first to be based on International

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as interpreted for local authorities.

An explanation of how the transition to IFRS has affected the Balance Sheet and
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is detailed in Note __.

The functional and presentation currency of Bracknell Forest Council (the Council) is
the pound sterling.

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally
historical cost, as modified by the revaluation of property, plant and equipment and
investment property.

The preparation of the accounts in conformity with the Code requires the use of

certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies.

Going Concern

The accounts are prepared on a going concern basis, i.e. on the assumption that the
Council will continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenditure

A creditor is recognised in the Balance Sheet when goods and services are received
prior to the reporting date and payment occurs after the reporting date.

Income Policy

Council Tax is recognised as income in the reporting period levied.

Grant income is recognised when the associated conditions have been satisfied.
Further details of the accounting for grants are presented below.

Fees and charges for goods or services delivered by the Council to the public are
recognised as income at the date the Council provides the relevant goods or
services.

Rents for the occupation of investment properties are recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

141



Annexe A

Where Council Tax, fees and charges, and rents have been recognised but cash has
not been received, a debtor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.
Where the debtor is impaired, the balance is written down to the amount expected to
be collected.

Exceptional Items

Items are presented as exceptional when that degree of prominence is necessary in
order to give a fair presentation of the financial statements. A description of each
exceptional item is given within the notes to the Accounts.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and
Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or
to correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for
prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not
give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the
effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Council’s financial position
or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively
(unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts
for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when
the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be
identified:

e those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period — the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such
events

e those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period —
the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where
a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the
notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the
Statement of Accounts.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Expenditure on property, plant and equipment is capitalised at cost when it will bring

benefits to the Council for more than one reporting period, subject to a de-minimis
capitalisation threshold of £2,000 per scheme. Items below this limit are charged to

142



Annexe A

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The Council does not
capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Land and buildings are subsequently measured at fair value. Fair value is primarily
based on the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use. Fair value is
estimated using a depreciated replacement cost approach when the asset is
specialised and/or rarely sold (such as a school).

The Council’s Principal Valuation Surveyor carries out the valuations in accordance
with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Appraisal and Valuation Manual,
known as the “Red Book”. The land and buildings are physically visited and valued
on a 5 year cycle.

When an asset’s carrying amount increases as a result of a revaluation, the increase
is recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any remaining increase is
credited directly to Revaluation Reserves. Any accumulated depreciation at the date
of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset, and the
net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

When an asset’s carrying amount decreases as the result of a revaluation or
impairment, the decrease is debited directly to the Revaluation Reserves to the
extent of any credit balance existing in respect of that asset. Any remaining decrease
is recognised against the relevant service lines in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Infrastructure, community assets, and assets under construction are measured at
depreciated historical cost. Vehicles, plant and equipment are also held at
depreciated historical cost which is considered to be a proxy for fair value as the
assets have short useful lives and/or low values.

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are
estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and,
where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is
recognised for the shortfall. Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or
an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the
relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the
relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to
the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been
charged if the loss had not been recognised.

143



Annexe A

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate an asset’s
carrying value to its residual value over its estimated useful life. Estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Buildings shorter of remaining life or 70 years
Community assets shorter of remaining life or 70 years
Infrastructure assets shorter of remaining life or 90 years
Vehicles, plant and equipment shorter of remaining lease period,

remaining life, or 30 years

Where an asset comprises two or more major components with substantially different
useful economic lives, each component is accounted for separately for depreciation
purposes and depreciated over its individual useful life. The requirement for
componentisation for depreciation purposes is only applicable to enhancement,
purchases, or revaluations after 1 April 2010.

No depreciation is charged on land and assets under construction.

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Depreciation charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services is
transferred from the General Fund to the Capital Adjustment Account within in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Each year the difference between depreciation, based on the revalued carrying
amount of the asset, charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and depreciation based on the asset’s historic cost is transferred from the
Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Investment Property

Investment property comprises land and buildings held solely to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation. The Council has elected to treat an operating lease as a
finance lease as permitted by the Code. This property is included in Investment
Property in the Balance Sheet.

Investment property are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value,
which is based on active market prices adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in
the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. The Council’s Principal
Valuation Surveyor carries out the valuations each year in accordance with the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors Appraisal and Valuation Manual, known as the
“Red Book”.

Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The
same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory

arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses
are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in

144



Annexe A

Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale
proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Investment properties held at fair value are not depreciated.
Operating Leases

Where the Council grants an operating lease over an investment property the leased
asset remains within Investment Property in the Balance Sheet. The rental income is
recognised over the term of the lease on a straight-line basis in the Income and
Expenditure in Relation to Investment Properties line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. Contingent rent is recognised in the period in which it
arises and is the difference between the original rent and the revised rent following a
rent review.

Up-front payments received on the granting of a leasehold interest classified as an
operating lease are recognised as a Creditor in the Balance Sheet and amortised
over the lease term.

Finance Leases

Where the Council grants a finance lease over an investment property, the leased
asset is derecognised (treated as a disposal) from Investment Property and a long
term debtor is recognised for any leases with rental payments in excess of
peppercorn rent. Peppercorn rents are recognised in the Income and Expenditure in
relation to Investment Properties line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Rental payments in excess of peppercorn rent are used to reduce the
long-term debtor and also include finance income that will be earned by the Council
whilst the debtor remains outstanding.

Intangible Assets

The Council accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the
software is not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of
the hardware item in Property, Plant and Equipment. Expenditure on the
development of websites is not capitalised as the website is primarily intended to
promote or advertise the Council’'s goods or services. Intangible assets include
purchased licenses. Expenditure on application software is capitalised as an
intangible asset when it will bring benefits to the Council for more than one reporting
period.

The intangible assets held by the Council are measured at depreciated historical cost
as readily ascertainable market values are not available.

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the shorter of remaining
useful life or six years to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset might
be impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

145



Annexe A

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not
permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are
therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds
greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is
reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before
reclassification (using the appropriate valuation basis for that category of asset) and
then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value (market value) less costs to
sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is
posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of
any previously losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services.
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying
amount before they were classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation,
amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been
classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision
not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for
Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset
in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for
Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts
from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off
against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital
receipts. The receipts are appropriated to the Capital Receipts Reserve from the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and can only be
used for new capital investment.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of
fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.

Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Capital Receipts that do not arise from the Disposal of an Asset

Receipts that do not arise from the disposal of an asset primarily relate to Right-to-
Buy and VAT shelter receipts from Bracknell Forest Homes. These are recorded as

146



Annexe A

Other Operating Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Account. The same amount is then transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve and
shown in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance.

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

General Fund service revenue accounts (as defined in CIPFA’s Best Value
Accounting Code of Practice), central support services and statutory trading accounts
are charged with a depreciation charge and, where required, any related impairment
or valuation loss (due to a clear consumption of economic benefits or other losses
where there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which
they can be written off) for all assets used in the provision of services. In addition,
services are also charged with a provision for amortisation of intangible assets and
where required any related impairment loss for intangible assets used in the
provision of services.

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisations. However it is required to make an annual
provision from revenue towards the reduction of its overall borrowing requirement
(the “Minimum Revenue Provision”). Any depreciation, impairment and valuation
losses or amortisations charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
are replaced by this revenue provision in the Movement in Reserves Statement by
way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account.

Financing costs (including interest payable under finance leases and PFI
arrangements) are included within Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Legislation allows some expenditure to be classified as capital for funding purposes
when it does not result in the expenditure being carried in the Balance Sheet as
Property, Plant and Equipment. The purpose of this is to enable it to be funded from
capital resources rather than be charged to the General Fund and impact on that
year’s council tax. These items are generally grants and expenditure on property not
owned by the Council.

Such expenditure is charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.
Any statutory provision that allows capital resources to meet the expenditure is
accounted for by debiting the Capital Adjustment Account and crediting the General
Fund. The credit is shown as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

Private Finance Initiative (PFI)

PFI contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making
available the assets required to provide the services passes to the contractor. As the
Council (along with Reading and Wokingham Councils) controls the services
provided under the Waste PFl agreement, and as the ownership of the assets used
to deliver the services pass to the three Councils at the end of the contract for no
additional charge, the Council carries its share of the assets on the Balance Sheet.

147



Annexe A

The annual unitary payment is separated into the following component parts, using
appropriate estimation techniques where necessary:

e payment for the fair value of services received; and
o payment for the PFI asset, including finance costs.

Services Received

The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under Cultural,
Environmental, Regulatory and Planning Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

PFI Asset

A PFI asset is recognised in Property, Plant and Equipment, as the asset comes into
use. The asset is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the property, plant or
equipment and the present value of the minimum payments. Subsequently, the asset
is measured at fair value according to the Council’'s accounting policy for each
relevant class of asset.

PFI Liability

A PFI liability is recognised at the same time the PFI| asset is recognised. It is
measured initially at the same amount as the PF| asset and is subsequently
measured at amortised cost. The liability, net of finance charges, is included in Short-
term Creditors and Long Term Creditors. Interest is charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement over the arrangement period at a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Lease Classification

Leases are classified as either finance leases or operating leases based on the
substance of the arrangement. Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the
land and buildings elements are considered separately for classification. Unless title
is expected to pass to the lessee at the end of the lease term, leases of land have
been classified as operating leases.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use
an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfiiment of
the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.

Operating Leases (Council as Lessee)

Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases.

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the asset in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease. Contingent rent is recognised in the period in which it arises.

Finance Leases (Council as Lessee)

Leases of property, plant and equipment, where the Council has substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership, are classified as finance leases.

148



Annexe A

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the lower of the
fair value of the leased property, plant and equipment and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Up-front payments for a leasehold interest classified as a
finance lease are capitalised as part of the asset.

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for
using the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being
charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life
(where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease
period).

The corresponding lease obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
Creditors.

Contingent rent is recognised as an expense in the period in which it arises.
Lease payments are apportioned between:

e a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment
— applied to write down the lease liability, and

¢ afinance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation
and impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual
contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed capital investment in
accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and
impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the General
Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment
Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions
repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are
investments that mature in no more than three months or less from the date of
acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with
insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s
cash management.

Financial Instruments

Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities which arise from contracts for the purchase
and sale of non-financial items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in
accordance with the Council’s normal purchase, sale or usage requirement, are
recognised when, and to the extent which, performance occurs. All other financial
assets and liabilities are recognised when the Council becomes party to the
contractual provisions to receive or make cash payments.

149



Annexe A

Classification and Measurement

Financial assets, other than cash and cash equivalents, are classified as loans and
receivables and are measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as creditors and are measured at amortised cost.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and then measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. The effective interest rate is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest revenue or expense
over the relevant period using the estimated future cash flows. For the loans that the
Authority has made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is
the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for
the year in the loan agreement.

Impairment of Financial Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Council assesses whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if
there is:

e Objective evidence of impairment as a result of a loss event that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset and up to the end of the reporting
period (‘a loss event’);

e The loss event had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets; and

e Areliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Financial assets are recorded in the Balance Sheet net of any impairment.
De-recognition

A financial asset is considered for de-recognition when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the financial asset expire, or the Council has either transferred the
contractual right to receive the cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more recipients, subject to certain
criteria. The Council de-recognises a transferred financial asset if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of any transaction costs
incurred, and then measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally
recognised.

150



Annexe A

They are included in Short-term Creditors except for the amounts payable more than
twelve months after the end of the reporting period, which are classified as Long
Term Creditors.

Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the
effective interest rate method and is charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

The Council has no external borrowing as at 31 March 2011.

Employee Benefits
Leave and Flexi-time Accrual

The accrual represents leave and flexi-time earned as of the reporting date that will
be utilised in the next reporting period. The accrual is measured at the amount of the
benefit earned by the employees of the Council. It is charged to the Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in
Reserves Statement so that benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in
which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to
terminate an officer's employment before the normal retirement date and are charged
on an accruals basis to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement when the Council is demonstrably committed to the
termination of the employment of an officer or group of officers.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory
provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable
by the Authority to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in
Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve
to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and
pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

The Council provides retirement benefits as part of the terms and conditions of
employment through the following defined benefit pension schemes:

e Teacher’s Pension Scheme, administered by Capita Teachers’ Pensions on
behalf of the Department for Education (DfE); and

e Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by the Royal Borough of
Windsor and Maidenhead Council.

The benefits (retirement lump sums and pensions), which are based on pay and
service, are earned over the term of employment.

151



Annexe A

Teacher’s Pension Scheme

Teachers employed by the Council are members of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme,
administered by the Department for Education. The Scheme provides teachers with
specified benefits upon their retirement, and the Council contributes towards the
costs by making contributions based on a percentage of members’ pensionable
salaries.

The Scheme is technically a defined benefit scheme. However, the Scheme is
unfunded and the Department for Education uses a notional fund as the basis for
calculating the employers’ contribution rate paid by local authorities. It is not possible
to identify the Council’s share of the underlying financial position and performance of
the Scheme with sufficient reliability for accounting purposes. For the purposes of
this Statement of Accounts, it is therefore accounted for on the same basis as a
defined contribution scheme and no liability for future payments of benefits is
recognised in the Balance Sheet. The Children’s and Education Services line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is charged with the employer’s
contributions payable to Teachers’ Pensions in the year.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The Council’s contributions are determined by triennial actuarial valuation. The latest
valuation was as at 31 March 2010. Under Superannuation Regulations, the
contribution rates are set to meet all the liabilities of the fund.

The Balance Sheet includes a Pension Reserve which reflects the Council’s share of
the schemes assets and liabilities. Employer contributions will be adjusted in future
years to fund any projected deficit.

The liabilities of the pension scheme attributable to the Council are measured on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit method — i.e. an assessment of the future
payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates,
and projections of projected earnings for current employees.

The liabilities are discounted using a discount rate based on the indicative rate of
return on the iBoxx AA rated over 15 year Corporate Bond Index, which is *.*% as of
31 March 2011.

The assets of the pension fund attributable to the Council are measured at fair value
as follows:

quoted securities — current bid price;
unquoted securities — professional estimate;
unitised securities — current bid price; and
property — market value.

The change in the net pension liability consists of the following seven components:

e current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service
earned this year;

e past service cost — the increase in liabilities arising from current year
decisions whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years;

152



Annexe A

e gains or losses on settlements and curtailments — the result of actions to
relieve the Authority of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future
service or accrual of benefits of employees;

e interest cost — the increase in the present value of benefits during the year
due to the passage of time;

e expected return on assets — the annual investment return on the fund
assets, based on an average of the expected long-term return;

e actuarial gains and losses — result of events not coinciding with assumptions
made at the last actuarial valuation or the actuaries updating the
assumptions; and

e contributions paid to the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead
Council pension fund — cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension
fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

Current service costs are allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement to the services for which the employees worked. Past service costs,
settlements and curtailments are reflected in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs. Interest cost and expected
return on assets are reflected in Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised directly in Other Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure and the Pensions Reserve.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund
balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or
directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that
there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash
paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid
at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby
measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by
employees.

Government Grants and Other Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third
party contributions are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable
assurance that:

o the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
e the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or
contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the
future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using
the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or
future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as Creditors. When conditions are

153



Annexe A

satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable
revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-
ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital
expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been
applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital
Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once
they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

Area Based Grant

Area Based Grant is a non-ring fenced general grant allocated directly to local
authorities as additional revenue funding. No conditions are attached to the grant
ensuring full local control over how it is used. The Council’s share of Area Based
Grant is therefore included under Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when:

e the Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events;

e itis probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; and

e areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. Where the effect is material, the estimated cash
flows are discounted. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council
becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the
balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into
account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year
— where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now
be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is
reversed and credited back to the relevant service.

Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or

otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise

154



Annexe A

be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note
to the accounts.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a
possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to
the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or
service potential.

Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to
cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure
to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service
revenue account in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision
of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve
is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the
expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes and do not represent
usable resources for the Council. These are the Revaluation Reserve, Capital
Adjustment Account, Financial Instrument Adjustment Account, Short-term
Accumulating Compensated Absences Account and Pension Reserve, which are
explained in the relevant policies and Notes to the Accounts.

Inventory

Inventory, which primarily relates to shop and catering goods, is measured at the
lower of cost and net realisable value using first-in first-out method.

Allocation of Support Services’ Costs (Overheads)

The costs of support services and service management are apportioned to services
within all programme areas on an assessed basis e.g. staff time, number of
transactions or space occupied. The total absorption costing principle is used — the
full cost of overheads and support service are shared between users in proportion to
the benefits received with the exception of:

Corporate and Democratic Core — costs relating to the Council’s status as a multi-
functional democratic organisation; and

Non Distributable Costs — the costs of discretionary benefits awarded to employees

retiring early and any depreciation, revaluation losses or impairment losses
chargeable on surplus assets or Assets Held for Sale.

155



Annexe A

These two costs categories are defined in the Best Value Accounting Code of
Practice (BVACOP) and accounted for as separate headings on the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision
of Services.

Jointly Controlled Operations and Jointly Controlled Assets

Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Council in conjunction
with other venturers that involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers
rather than the establishment of a separate entity. The Council recognises on its
Balance Sheet the assets that it controls and the liabilities that it incurs and debits
and credits the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with the
expenditure its incurs and the share of income it earns from the activity of the
operation.

Jointly controlled assets are items of property, plant or equipment that are jointly
controlled by the Council and other venturers, with the assets being used to obtain
benefits for the venturers. The joint venture does not involve the establishment of a
separate entity. The Council accounts for only its share of the jointly controlled
assets, the liabilities and expenses that it incurs on its own behalf or jointly with
others in respect of its interest in the joint venture and income that it earns from the
venture.

Landfill Allowances Trading Scheme (LATS)

The Waste and Emission Trading Act 2003 places a duty on waste disposal
authorities in England and Wales to reduce the amount of biodegradable municipal
waste disposed to landfill. The Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme is a ‘cap and
trade’ scheme which allocates tradable landfill allowances to each waste disposal
Council up to the ‘cap’. The LATS gives rise to:

e An asset for the allowances held;
e LATS grantincome; and
e Aliability for the actual landfill usage.

Allowances are recognised as current assets and are measured initially at their fair
value. Landfill allowances are issued free by DEFRA. The fair value of the
allowances issued to the Council is a government grant. The grant is initially
recognised in the Balance Sheet and subsequently recognised as income over the
compliance year for which the allowances were allocated.

As landfill is used a liability and an expense are recognised for the actual landfill
usage. The liability is a provision which is discharged by using allowances to meet
the liability and by the payment of any cash penalty to DEFRA for exceeding the
landfill. The liability is normally recognised in the Balance Sheet at the present
market value. However where some of the obligation will be met by paying a cash
penalty to DEFRA, that part is measured at the cost of the penalty.

After initial measurement, the value of landfill allowances is re-measured at the lower
of cost or net realisable value. Where there is no evidence of an active market for
landfill allowances, for example where the number of allowances issued is greater
than that required by authorities, the fair value of the allowances and the net
realisable value of the allowances is likely to be nil.

156



Annexe A

Value Added Tax (VAT)

VAT payable is included as an expense in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement only to the extent that it is not recoverable. VAT receivable is
excluded from income.

157



This page is intentionally left blank

158



	Agenda
	3 Minutes - 25 January 2011
	5 External Audit Matters
	2010-2011 - Bracknell Forest Council - Audit plan - Bracknell Forest Council
	2011-12 LG Bracknell Forest Council fee letter
	20101210anewapproachtovalueformoneyauditLGHCS

	6 Certification of Claims and Returns Annual Report: Housing Benefit and Council Tax Subsidy and Housing Benefit Internal Audit Report 2010/11
	Certification of Claims & Returns Annual Report Appendix A
	Certification of Claims & Returns Annual Report Appendix B
	Certification of Claims & Reutnrs Annual Report Appendix C
	Appendix D - Equality Screening Form

	7 Internal Audit Plan 2011-12
	8 Town Centre Land Disposals
	9 Amendments to the Council's Constitution
	10 Anti-Money Laundering
	11 Accounting Policies
	Annexe A - Accounting policies


